Enquiries to: #JAC

Telephone: (01278) 646188

E-mail: JAC@avonandsomerset.pnn.police.uk

To:

Date : 2nd July 2019

ALL MEMBERS OF THE JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

Katherine Crallan, Jude Ferguson (Chair), David Daw, Sue Warman
Chief Constable (“CC”), CFO for CC and Relevant Officers
The Police & Crime Commissioner (“PCC”)
The CFO and CEO for the PCC
External and Internal Auditors

Dear Member
NOTICE OF MEETING
You are invited to a meeting of the Joint Audit Committee to be held at 11:00 on 10th
July 2019 in the Main Conference Room, Police Headquarters, Portishead. Due to
the timing of this meeting lunch will be provided.
Joint Audit Committee Members are invited to attend a pre-meeting at 10:00 in the Main
Conference Room.
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf.
Yours sincerely

Alaina Davies
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon & Somerset
Police Headquarters, Valley Road, Portishead, Bristol BS20 8JJ
Website: www.avonandsomerset-pcc.gov.uk
Tel: 01278 646188
email: pcc@avonandsomerset.pnn.police.uk

INFORMATION ABOUT THIS MEETING
(i)

Car Parking Provision
Please ask the Gatehouse staff where to park, normally the South Car Park.
Disabled parking is available.

(ii)

Wheelchair Access
The Meeting Room has access for wheelchair users. There are disabled parking
bays in the visitor’s car park next to reception. A ramp will give you access to
reception, a lift is available to the 1st floor.

(iii)

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The attention of Members, Officers and the public is drawn to the emergency
evacuation procedure for the Conference Room: Follow the Green Fire Exit
Signs to the large green Assembly Point A sign in the Car Park at the front of
the Admin Building.

(iv)

Please sign the register.

(v)

If you have any questions about this meeting, require special facilities to enable
you to attend. If you wish to inspect Minutes, reports, or a list of the background
papers relating to any item on this agenda, please contact:
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Valley Road
Portishead
BS20 8JJ
Telephone: 01275 814677
Facsimile: 01275 816388
Email:
JAC@avonandsomerset.pnn.police.uk

(vi)

REPORT NUMBERS CORRESPOND TO AGENDA NUMBER

AGENDA
10th July 2019, 11:00
Conference Room, Police Headquarters, Portishead
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure for the
Conference Room: Follow the Green Fire Exit Signs to the large green Assembly
Point A sign in the Car Park at the front of the Admin Building.

3.

Declarations of Gifts/Offers of Hospitality
To remind Members of the need to record any personal interests or any
prejudicial interest relating to the agenda and disclose any relevant receipt of
offering of gifts or hospitality

4.

Public Access
(maximum time allocated for this item is 30 minutes)
Statements and/or intentions to attend the Joint Audit Committee should be emailed to JAC@avonandsomerset.pnn.police.uk
Statements and/or intentions to attend must be received no later than 12.00 noon
on the working day prior to the meeting.

5.

Minutes of the Joint Audit Committee Meeting held on 21st March 2019
(Report 5)

6.

Business from the Chair (Report 6):
a)
b)
c)
d)

Police and Crime Board (Verbal Update)
Update on IOPC Investigations (Verbal Update)
Joint Audit Committee Annual Report
Annual Review of Joint Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Verbal
Update)

7.

Internal Audit (Report 7)
a) Introduction to SWAP
b) Draft Internal Audit Plan

8.

External Audit Update (Report 8):
a) Joint Audit Findings
b) 2019/20 Audit Fee Letter

9.

Annual Accounts and Governance Statement: Joint Audit Committee
Questions and Answers

10.

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Strategic Risk Register
(Report 10)

11.

Constabulary Strategic Risk Register (Report 11)

12.

Summary of Recommendations (Verbal Update)

Part 2
Items for consideration without the press and public present
13.

Exempt minutes of the Joint Audit Committee Meeting held 21st March 2019
(Report 13)

UNCONFIRMED Draft
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR AVON AND SOMERSET
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MINUTES OF THE JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY
21ST MARCH 2019 AT 11:00 IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM, POLICE HQ, VALLEY
ROAD, PORTISHEAD
Members in Attendance
David Daw
Jude Ferguson (Chair)
Sue Warman
Officers of the Constabulary in Attendance
Andy Marsh, Chief Constable
Sarah Omell, Head of Improvement
Sharon Quantick, Deputy Director – Finance and Business Services
Officers of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC)
Mark Simmonds, OPCC CFO
Karin Takel, OPCC Strategic Planning and Performance Officer
Alaina Davies, OPCC Resources Officer
Also in Attendance
Jackson Murray, Grant Thornton
Mark Jones, RSM
Victoria Gould, RSM
Sue Mountstevens, Police and Crime Commissioner
1.

Apologies for Absence
Sarah Crew, Deputy Chief Constable
Nick Adams, Chief Officer - Finance, Resources and Innovation
Ben Valentine, Governance Secretariat Manager
Katherine Crallan, Joint Audit Committee Member
Iain Murray, Grant Thornton

2.

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The emergency evacuation procedure for the Conference room was noted.

3.

Declarations of Interest / Gifts / Offers of Hospitality
None.

4.

Public Access
There were no requests for public access

5.

Minutes of the Joint Audit Committee Meeting held on 16th January
2019(Report 5)
RESOLVED THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 16th January 2019

UNCONFIRMED Draft
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.
Action update:

6.

Minute 32a

A briefing on the new Strategic Framework will be given
to Joint Audit Committee Members prior to the next
meeting of the Committee in July 2019.

Minute 32b

A follow up on the Health and Safety audit will be
included in the audit plan for next year.

Minute 49

Members have identified some clear risk themes they
would like the Constabulary to update on which are HR,
Collaboration and Data Quality. Members will discuss
further areas and feed this back into the audit planning
process.

Business from the Chair
a)

Welcome New Joint Audit Committee Member
New Joint Audit Committee Member, David Daw, introduced himself
and gave a summary of his background. A summary can be found on
the Joint Audit Committee page of the PCC’s website.

b)

Police and Crime Board
The OPCC CFO has circulated summary notes to the Joint Audit
Committee Members of highlights from the Police and Crime Board
over the last quarter.
Performance – some areas of improvement were identified but still
waiting for improvement in areas such as Victim Code of Practise
(VCOP) compliance and Victim Satisfaction. The improvements in
managing demand, positive outcomes and the 101 abandonment rates
were highlighted.
Assurance Reports – assurance reports have focused on the force
response to Domestic Abuse, update on Neighbourhood Policing and
the approach to the refreshed objectives within Strategic Priority 3
(Right people, right equipment, right culture). A lot of good work has
been highlighted but also the areas for improvement.
Victim Satisfaction – reporting on victim satisfaction will look different as
how it is assessed will be changing under the new plan. More
assurance can be taken from the new grading that will be applied and
the focus will be on how the Constabulary should be performing and
areas for improvement. There will need to be a read across to
understand how the old measures compare to the new ones. Members
were assured that where appropriate the Constabulary will take into
account national benchmarking but that this needs to be considered in
the context of Avon and Somerset’s vision for being an outstanding

UNCONFIRMED Draft
force and not just comparing favourably against other forces where
recording practices may differ.
Funding Settlement – the funding settlement represents the largest
increase in income for a number of years as the Government are
allowing PCC’s to again raise the Council Tax Precept, there is a small
increase in the main police grant and a pensions grant. Of the £22m
increase in income £7m will need to cover inflation and annual pay
increases; & £7m will need to cover the increase in police pension
employers contributions. The OPCC CFO also highlighted that Capital
funding needs to be more sustainable so £5m per year of revenue
funding will be going into capital by the end of the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) period.
Major Projects – updates on Estates rolling project (this is a big
requirement of capital funding at the moment). Mobilisation rolling
project. IT updates. Updates have been given on ending the Tri-Force
collaboration and it is not thought that this will require budget uplift.
Forensics issues in relation to Terms and Conditions still being worked
through.
Updates have also been given on Operation Remedy (focus on
burglary, knife crime and drugs).
Recruitment updates – Constabulary have recruited to full
establishment for officers in 2018/19 and will be recruiting an addition
100 officers in 2019/20 due to the increase in income (this is on top of
replacing officers leaving or retiring). This represents an ongoing high
volume of work for the HR department, training and vetting. The police
degree apprenticeship has been signed off.
The Treasury Management Strategy has been signed off – this included
£15m increase in borrowing upper limit to fund the capital plan. The
revised draft Police and Crime Plan has been agreed and is just
awaiting final comments from the Police and Crime Panel before being
finalised. This will be forwarded to Joint Audit Committee Members.
The Constabulary are finalising a revised Strategic Framework.
RESOLVED THAT the final Police and Crime Plan will be circulated to
Joint Audit Committee Members.
c)

Update on IOPC Investigations
There was no Constabulary officer available to give a verbal update. A
hardcopy update was circulated to Joint Audit Committee Members and
they will feedback any questions to the Constabulary outside of the
meeting.

d)

Internal Audit

UNCONFIRMED Draft
The Internal Auditors will be changing as Avon and Somerset move to a
collaborative approach to internal audit – more detail on this will be
discussed at the next meeting of the Joint Audit Committee.
The Joint Audit Committee thanked the current Internal Auditors, RSM,
for their hard work. Members thanked Vickie Gould in particular. The
internal auditors were particularly influential during the formation of the
Joint Audit Committee and in improving their approach to risk.
7.

Internal Audit Reports:
a)

Environmental Scanning (Report 7a)
This was an advisory report on the mechanisms the Constabulary have
in place to react to environmental change. As this was an advisory
report no opinion was given. The internal auditors highlighted that lots
of work is being done but there is no formal framework in place – this is
being addressed as part of the Strategic Framework planning.
Three medium actions were raised around linking to the Strategic
Framework and communication with all partners feeding into the
development of the Police and Crime Needs Assessment (PCNA).
The Strategic Framework will provide a clearer holistic view of the
organisation. The PCC commented that the OPCC have adjusted the
approach to increase engagement with partners but it is taking time to
realistically make it a collective assessment.

b)

PCC and Chief Constable Expenses (Report 7b)
This report has a green positive level of assurance. The expenses
policy and compliance with Home Office guidance were looked at
during this audit. Four low level action recommendations have been
completed already. It was agreed that expenses in the wider
organisation should be looked at again as part of the audit plan for next
year.
RESOLVED THAT expenses across the wider organisation should be
looked at as part of the Internal Audit Plan for next year.

c)

Organisational Learning (Report 7c)
This audit report on Organisational Learning does not provide an
opinion of the effectiveness due to the changes taking place – the
auditors could only look at the direction of travel. Overall a reasonable
assurance opinion was given on design and intention with 2 low level
actions recommended.
Organisational Learning is an integral part of the Strategic Framework
work. Members were assured that the Constabulary are working on
linking the Individual Performance Review (IPR) across all levels of the
organisation.

UNCONFIRMED Draft
RESOLVED THAT Organisational Learning Effectiveness need to be
included in the Internal Audit Plan for next year.
d)

Follow Up Part 2 (Report 7d)
The Internal Auditors look at actions on a six-monthly basis to validate
the legitimacy of the status being reported by managers. Only 1 of the
21 actions considered were not felt to be accurately recorded.

e)

Annual Report
Minute contained in exempt minutes.

8.

External Audit Update
a) Joint External Audit Plan
Update on the audit for the year ending 31st March 2019. There have been
accounting standards updates but these do not have a huge impact on the
police audit. The Constabulary highlighted the staffing shortages in the
Finance Department and gave an update on recruitment. The significant risks
to the opinion, as highlighted in the report, were discussed.
Members queried the need for the valuation of land and buildings as this was
thoroughly done last year – the CIPFA Code states that some sort of exercise
should be done every year.
Members discussed Value for Money and concerns regarding complex crime
and working with partners. Balancing the statutory safeguarding
responsibilities of the police with other business was discussed. This will be
discussed with Members as part of the pre-meet to the July Joint Audit
Committee.
b) Audit Progress Report
Highlighted the interim audit work being done. Looking at IT was delayed due
to planning for MFSS but this will now go ahead. The report will be presented
to the Joint Audit Committee at the meeting in July 2019. Transactional testing
of months 1 to 10 has been completed and no significant issues have been
identified.

9.

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Strategic Risk Register
(Report 9)
SR3 Finance Incapability and VFM – risk reduced following the funding
settlement. This would go back up if the Government, in future years, revert to
saying that PCC’s can only raise the Council Tax Precept by 2% at the same
time as freezing other grants – in this situation inflation will overtake income. If
Britain’s exit from the European Union goes ahead then a comprehensive
spending review is expected in the summer.
SR2 Police and Crime Plan – still a high risk but this is expected to come
down with the finalisation of the revised Police and Crime Plan. The Chief

UNCONFIRMED Draft
Constable highlighted the challenge this year to recruit the extra officers but
was clear that it takes three years to train a new Police Constable.
RESOLVED THAT a summary sheet should be provided in future similar to
the one the Constabulary provide for their risk register.
10.

Constabulary Strategic Risk Register (Report 10)
A new item has been added with regard to cryptographic items – the facilities
and governance. The GDPR/ Data Protection risk is now managed under a
separate risk register which is monitored at the Strategic Information
Management Board. Members requested that the Constabulary revert back to
using the arrows on this report to signify the direction of travel.
RESOLVED THAT arrows should be included in the report to signify the
direction of travel.

11.

Exempt Minutes of the Joint Audit Committee Meeting held 16th January
2019 (Report 11)
EXEMPT MINUTES

The meeting concluded at 12:50

CHAIR

UNCONFIRMED Draft

ACTION SHEET

MINUTE NUMBER

ACTION NEEDED

RESPONSIBLE
MEMBER/
OFFICER

DATE DUE

A briefing on the new Strategic
Framework should be given at a
future Joint Audit Committee
Member pre-meeting.

OPCC CFO’s PA

TBA

A follow up to the Health and
Safety audit should be carried
out next year.

Internal Auditors

2019 - TBA

JAC Chair

TBA

Send the final version of the
revised Police and Crime .Plan
to the Joint Audit Committee
Members.

OPCC Strategic
Planning and
Performance
Officer

Immediate

Include a summary report with
the OPCC Strategic Risk
Register in future (similar to the
one provided by the
Constabulary for their risk
register)

OPCC Strategic
Planning and
Performance
Officer

10th July
2019

Include the arrows (as has
previously been included) to
signify the direction of travel.

Constabulary
Head of
Improvement

10th July
2019

Expenses across the wider
organisation will be looked at as

OPCC CFO

TBA

Minute 32a
Internal Audit
Report:
Governance
26th September
2018
Minute 32b
Internal Audit
Report: Health and
Safety
26th September
2018
Minute 49
The Joint Audit Committee will
Summary of Open
prepare some themes they
Recommendations
would like the Constabulary to
(Report 11)
update on.
16th January 2019
Minute 6b
Police and Crime
Board
21st March 2019
Minute 9
OPCC Strategic
Risk Register
21st March 2019
Minute 10
Constabulary
Strategic Risk
Register
21st March 2019
Minute 7b

UNCONFIRMED Draft
PCC and Chief
Constable
Expenses

part of the Internal Audit Plan
next year.

21st March 2019
Minute 7c
Organisational
Learning
21st March 2019

Effectiveness of Organisational
Learning needs to be included in
the Internal Audit Plan for next
year.

Constabulary
CFO

TBA

AVON & SOMERSET JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE (“JAC”)
10th July 2019

6c

JAC ANNUAL REPORT for the year ended March 2019
INTRODUCTION
1.

This Paper sets out the annual report from the independent Joint Audit
Committee (“JAC”) for the Police and Crime Commissioner (“PCC”) and Chief
Constable (“OCC”) of Avon & Somerset.

Development of the JAC
2.

During the year the membership of the JAC changed with one Member
leaving the committee to live in another part of the UK and one new Member
joining on a one year contract to be coterminous with the remaining existing
Members.

3.

The independent Members and Chair undertook personal development
activities and self-assessed positively, including:


Member development - all Members except the new Member have
completed development reviews with the Chair of the JAC and the
Chair has completed a development review with the PCC. Members
tracked national best practice for audit committees informally during the
year and received briefing materials from both internal and external
auditors.



Regional meeting – Grant Thornton facilitated a regional meeting of
Members and Chairs to share best practice, latest developments and
consider issues such as collaboration.



Member briefings – to enable greater depth of understanding of the
work undertaken by the Constabulary, members have attended
informative briefing sessions with Constabulary and OPCC leads
during the year on a range of strategic topics.



Risk Assurance
The JAC has continued to work with the PCC and Chief Constable to
further enhance the risk management framework and risk control
environment during the year. This has been reflected with improved
risk registers and with better aligned risk assurance from audit work,
HMICFRS, OPCC service delivery assurance work and other sources
of assurance.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference for the JAC were updated in 2018 to incorporate
amendments to reflect new GDPR data protection legislation, include

reference to disciplinary procedures and to enable a serving Chair to be in
office for two successive four year terms.

Police & Crime Board
The JAC receives detailed notes from the Police and Crime Board meetings
on a quarterly basis.
Chair
4.

Jude Ferguson was reappointed in office as Chair of the JAC for a second
term.

Internal audit 2018/19
5. RSM’s term of appointment as internal audit provider ended on 31 March
2019 in accordance with their contract.
6. A new audit provider – South West Audit partnership “SWAP” was appointed
to start work in the 2019/20 audit year. This is a public sector collaborative
approach to audit offering value for money, shared learning and best practice.
7. During the year under review, RSM completed 12 substantive audits and 3
advisory reviews, in accordance with the JAC approved 2018/19 audit plan.
8. Two of the internal audits competed in the year gave “negative” opinions with
only partial assurance.
9. In total there were three “high” rated management actions raised from the
reports, which are being progressed by their Constabulary owners and will be
subject to further follow-up audit.
10. Overall, tracking and follow up by management of agreed actions from
internal audit has improved during the year. In total, 75% of agreed “high” and
“medium” actions are either implemented, superseded, or in the process of
being implemented according to the internal audit follow-up report in March
2019.
11. A final draft internal audit plan for 2019/20 has been developed for approval at
the July JAC, following planning work between the JAC, the PCC, the Chief
Constable, the CFOs and SWAP as the new internal audit service provider.
12. Annual report of the Internal Auditor
RSM acting as the joint head of internal audit have submitted their annual
report, which confirms that the PCC’s and OCC’s arrangements for
governance, risk management and internal control are adequate and
effective.
The internal audit annual report also identified further enhancements to the
framework of risk management, governance and internal controls.

The key issues arising from internal audit in 2018/19 are:
Key Financial Controls
This audit identified a areas of inconsistent compliance as a result of changes
in the finance team during the year. These are all now being addressed by the
newly appointed Head of Finance.

Change commissioning - projects
Although the review of key change projects was positive there was one
exception and the lessons learnt from this are clear and accepted by senior
management in the Constabulary and OPCC.
GDPR
This audit review highlighted areas for improvement on personal data
discovery and mapping to ensure that all personal data flows are identified
and that appropriate controls are in place to address the requirements of the
GDPR. These recommendations are all accepted by management and are all
being addressed by a recently appointed Data Protection Officer.

13. External Audit
Grant Thornton (“GT”) continued as external auditor appointed through the
Public Sector Audit Appointments process.
Audit Findings for 2017/18 annual accounts:
The external auditor issued unqualified audit reports for the 2017/18 PCC and
OCC accounts and their detailed reports and audit letter are published on the
PCC’s website. In addition, no issues arose from their assessment of the
PCC’s and Chief Constable’s arrangements to secure value for money.
Year end 2018/19 accounts:
Interim work has been completed for the 2018/19 annual accounts audit with
no material issues arising and the final audit work has commenced. Draft
accounts that have been published, final audit work is underway and the
public inspection period closes mid July 2019.

11. Recommendation
The Joint Audit Committee is invited to review this report and approve the annual
report for publication.
JUDE FERGUSON
CHAIR AVON AND SOMERSET JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE
Contact Officers:

Mark Simmonds, OPCC CFO

(01278 646553)
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Avon & Somerset Constabulary and Office of the
Police and Crime Commissioner
Proposed 2019-20 Internal Audit Plan
and Internal Audit Charter

Internal Audit  Risk  Special Investigations  Consultancy
Unrestricted

The Internal Audit Plan: Summary
The internal audit plan represents a
summary of the proposed audit
coverage that the internal audit team
will deliver throughout the 2019/20
financial year.
Delivery of an internal audit
programme of work that provides
sufficient and appropriate coverage,
will enable us to provide a
well-informed and comprehensive
year-end annual internal audit
opinion.

Introduction and Objective of the Internal Audit Plan
SWAP will provide an independent and objective opinion on the risk management, governance, and control
environment at Avon and Somerset Constabulary and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) by
evaluating its effectiveness.
Prior to the start of each financial year, SWAP, in conjunction with senior management, put together a proposed
plan of audit work. The objective of our planning process and subsequent plan is to put us in a position to provide
a well-informed and comprehensive annual audit opinion, based on sufficient and appropriate coverage of key
Constabulary and OPCC objectives, associated risks, and risk management processes.
The outcomes of each of the audits in our planned programme of work, will provide senior management and
Members of the Joint Audit Committee (JAC) with assurance that the current risks faced by the Constabulary and
OPCC in these areas are adequately controlled and managed.
It should be noted that internal audit is only one source of assurance, and the outcomes of internal audit reviews
should be considered alongside other sources, as part of the ‘three lines of defence’ assurance model. Key findings
from our internal audit work should also be considered in conjunction with completion of the respective Annual
Governance Statements.
It is the responsibility of the Constabulary’s Executive, OPCC Senior Management, two Chief Finance Officers
and the Joint Audit Committee, to determine that the audit coverage contained within the proposed audit plan
is sufficient and appropriate in providing independent assurance against the key risks faced by the organisation.
When reviewing the proposed internal audit plan (as set out in Appendix 1), key questions to consider include:

Unrestricted



Are the areas selected for coverage this coming year appropriate?



Does the internal audit plan cover the Constabulary and OPCC’s key risks as they are recognised by Senior
Management and Joint Audit Committee?



Is sufficient assurance being received within our annual plan to monitor the Constabulary’s risk profile
effectively?

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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The Internal Audit Plan: Approach
To develop an appropriate risk-based
audit plan, SWAP have consulted with
senior management, as well as
reviewing key documentation, in
order to obtain an understanding of
the Constabulary and OPCC’s
strategies, key business objectives,
associated
risks,
and
risk
management processes.

Approach to Internal Audit Planning 2019/20
The factors considered in putting together the 2019/20 internal audit plan have been set out below:
 Review of the Constabulary and OPCC’s key aims, objectives and plans;
 Review of the key risks featuring in the respective Constabulary and OPCC risk registers;
 SWAP risk assessment, based on our knowledge of the Constabulary and OPCC and on consideration of
work completed by the previous Internal Auditors;
 Inclusion of audit follow up work incorporating any prior year weaknesses identified;
 For this first year in particular, we will look to include specific requests for assurance and advisory work
from management and members.

An initial meeting was held via Skype in April 2019 between SWAP and the Chief Finance Officers of both the
Constabulary and OPCC to discuss some early areas for inclusion in the 2019/20 internal audit plan, which formed
a Draft plan. A subsequent meeting took place between SWAP, the Chief Finance Officers and members of the
Joint Audit Committee (JAC) in May 2019 to further refine the Draft Plan, which has culminated in the Plan
attached in Appendix 1.
Throughout our audits this year, we will look to include consideration of the following themes where appropriate,
as discussed with the members of the JAC and Chief Finance Officers:




Leadership & Culture;
Learning;
Diversity & Inclusion.

We will regularly re-visit and adjust our programme of audit work to ensure that it matches the changing risk
profile of the Constabulary and OPCC and remains flexible to respond to new and emerging risks as and when they
are identified.

Unrestricted

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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The Internal Audit Plan: Risk Assessment
A documented risk assessment prior
to developing an internal audit plan,
ensures
that
sufficient
and
appropriate areas are identified for
consideration.
As above, it is the responsibility of the
Constabulary’s Executive, OPCC
Senior Management and the Joint
Audit Committee to ensure that,
following our risk assessment, the
proposed plan contains sufficient and
appropriate coverage.

Internal Audit Annual Risk Assessment
Our 2019/20 internal audit programme of work is based on a documented risk assessment, which SWAP will revisit regularly, but at least annually. The input of senior management as well as review of the risk registers across
the Constabulary and OPCC will be considered in this process. Below we have set out a summary of the
outcomes of the risk assessment for Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC.

Local Issues

Regional Issues

Review of Strategic Framework
Diversity & Inclusion
Asset Management
Workforce Planning
Network Security
Officer Overtime
Demand Management
Leadership & Culture
Cyber Security

Partnerships and Collaboration
Use and Management of Reserves
Achievement of Saving Targets
Commercial Investments & Income Generation
Ongoing GDPR & LED Compliance
Vetting Capacity
Fleet Management

Core Areas of
Recommended Coverage
Finance
Force Functions (HR, Estates, Fleet)
OPCC
Governance, Fraud & Risk Management
ICT
Information Management
Programme Management
Benefits Realisation
Commissioning & Procurement

Risk
Assessment

National Issues

Brexit
Policing Education Qualifications Framework
Police Funding
Police Officer Pensions
Terrorism and major incidents
Apprenticeship Schemes
Knife Crime & County Lines
Supply Chain Management & Supplier Resilience
Changes to HMICFRS assessments
Cybercrime
Officer Wellbeing/ Mental Health
Demand led policing

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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The Internal Audit Plan: Coverage
Following our SWAP Risk Assessment
above, we have set out how the
proposed 19/20 plan presented in
Appendix 1 provides coverage of the
key components set out in the Force
Management Statement (FMS).
We have taken the approach of
aligning our Audit universe with the
Force Management Statements from
HMICFRS as these will be used to
inform their risk-based testing as part
of the new approach to PEEL Reviews.
Internal audit is only one source of
assurance; therefore, where we have
highlighted gaps in our coverage,
assurance should be sought from
other sources where possible in order
to ensure sufficient and appropriate
assurances are received.
For those areas marked as Red (No
Coverage), we anticipate that other
assurance providers will be covering
those areas.

Internal Audit Coverage in 2019/20
Following our SWAP risk assessment, we have set out below the extent to which the proposed plan presented in
Appendix 1 provides coverage of the key components set out in the Force Management Statement (supplemented
by our core areas of recommended coverage). Where we have highlighted limited or no coverage, Senior
Management and the Independent Audit Committee should seek assurance from alternative sources, or consider
re-focussing internal audit resource to provide coverage of these areas:
Managing
Offenders

Managing
Serious &
Organised
Crime

Major
Events

Force
Wellbeing

ICT &
Information
Management

Force
Functions

Protecting
Vulnerable
People

Finance

Collaborations

Investigations

Prevention &
Deterrence

Governance,
Fraud & Risk
Management

Assurance

Responding to
the Public
Substantial
Coverage

Reasonable
Coverage

Partial
Coverage

Limited
Coverage

No
Coverage

OPCC
(Specific
Activity)

Internal audit coverage can never be absolute and responsibility for risk management, governance and internal
control arrangements will always remain fully with management. As such, internal audit cannot provide complete
assurance over any area, and equally cannot provide any guarantee against material errors, loss or fraud.
SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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The Internal Audit Plan: SWAP
SWAP Internal Audit Services is a
public
sector,
not-for-profit
partnership, owned by the public
sector partners that it serves. The
SWAP Partnership now includes 24
public sector partners, crossing eight
Counties, but also providing services
throughout the UK.
As a company, SWAP has adopted the
following values, which we ask our
clients to assess us against following
every piece of work that we do:






Candid
Relevant
Inclusive
Innovative
Dedicated

Your Internal Audit Service
Audit Resources
The 2019/20 internal audit programme of work will be equivalent to 180 days. The current internal audit resources
available represent a sufficient and appropriate mix of seniority and skill to be effectively deployed to deliver the
planned work. The key contacts in respect of your internal audit service for Avon & Somerset and OPCC will be:
Rupert Bamberger, Assistant Director – rupert.bamberger@swapaudit.co.uk, phone number: 07724312464
Laura Wicks Principal Auditor – laura.wicks@swapaudit.co.uk, phone number: 07825685711
Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of
Internal Auditors, further guided by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
Every three years, SWAP is subject to an External Quality Assessment of Internal Audit Activity. The last of these
was carried out in March 2016 which confirmed conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
Conflicts of Interest
We are not aware of any conflicts of interest within Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC that would present
an impairment to our independence or objectivity. Furthermore, we are satisfied that we will conform with our
IIA Code of Ethics in relation to Integrity, Objectivity, Confidentiality, & Competency.
Consultancy Engagements
As part of our internal audit service, we may accept proposed consultancy engagements, based on the
engagement's potential to improve management of risk, add value and improve the organisation's operations.
Consultancy work that is accepted, will contribute to our annual opinion and will be included in our plan of work.
Approach to Fraud
Internal audit may assess the adequacy of the arrangements to prevent and detect irregularities, fraud and
corruption. We have dedicated counter fraud resource available to undertake specific investigations if required.
However, the primary responsibility for preventing and detecting corruption, fraud and irregularities rests with
management who should institute adequate systems of internal control, including clear objectives, segregation of
duties and proper authorisation procedures.

Unrestricted
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The Internal Audit Plan: SWAP
Over and above our internal audit
service delivery, SWAP will look to add
value throughout the year wherever
possible. This will include:


Benchmarking and sharing of
best-practice between our Police
and other public-sector Partners



Regular newsletters and bulletins
containing emerging issues and
risks



Communication of fraud alerts
received both regionally and
nationally



Annual Member training sessions

Our Reporting
A summary of internal audit activity will be reported quarterly to senior management and the Joint Audit
Committee. This reporting will include any significant risk and control issues (including fraud risks), governance
issues and other matters that require the attention of senior management and/or the Joint Audit Committee. We
will also report any response from management to a risk we have highlighted that, in our view, may be
unacceptable to the organisation.
Internal Audit Performance:
As part of our regular reporting to senior management and the Independent Audit Committee, we will report on
internal audit performance. The following performance targets will be used to measure the performance of our
audit activity:
Performance Measure

Performance
Target

Delivery of Annual Internal Audit Plan
Completed at year end

>90%

Quality of Audit Work
Overall Client Satisfaction

>95%

(did our audit work meet or exceed expectations, when looking at our Communication, Auditor
Professionalism and Competence, and Value to the Organisation)

Outcomes from Audit Work
Value to the Organisation

>95%

(client view of whether our audit work met or exceeded expectations, in terms of value to their area)

Unrestricted
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It should be noted that the audit titles and high-level scopes included below are only indicative at this stage for planning our resources. At the start of each audit, an
initial discussion will be held to agree the specific terms of reference for the piece of work, which includes the objective and scope for the review.
Link to FMS

Link to Risk Register

Areas of Coverage and Brief Rationale

Governance,
Fraud and
Risk
Management

SRR1 - Loss of legitimacy and
public confidence

Refreshing Strategic Framework
The Force is currently on a journey to refresh its overarching strategic framework, including
a new meeting structure, corporate framework, assurance framework, project plan
framework and a dynamic planning tool which can be updated in real time. This has created
cultural change and required a change in leadership style. How is the Force progressing on
this journey and is it likely that the outcomes required will be achieved? To what extent have
diversity and inclusion been woven in to the new strategic framework?

Force
Functions

SRR2 - Inability to attract,
recruit, retain and deploy a
diverse workforce with the
right, skills, in the right place at
the right time to meet
projected demand and agreed
establishment levels and to
ensure that it is sufficiently
engaged and productive

Workforce Plan
A review to consider the Force’s wider workforce plan arrangements, for both staff and
officers, which will incorporate areas such as recruitment, succession planning training,
accreditation etc. How is the Force mapping the skills it believes it needs based on demand?
We will look to undertake a ‘deep-dive’ into the speed of recruitment as part of this review
– is this affecting the Force’s ability to meet diversity requirements?

SRR3 - Lack of capacity and/or
capability to deliver an
effective policing service

Fleet Management
The Constabulary is due to implement a new Strategy next year regarding the management
of its fleet. This audit would look at the controls in place to manage availability of the fleet,
service scheduling and resources to assess the extent to which these are complied with and
giving consideration to knock-on effects of non-delivery. In addition, how is energy efficiency
of the fleet being managed and promoted?

(Constabulary Strategic Risk
Register March 2019)

Proposed
Days

Proposed
Timing

15

Quarter 4

15

Quarter 2

15

Quarter 4

15

Quarter 3

(Constabulary Strategic Risk Register
March 2019)

Force
Functions

(Constabulary
Strategic
Register March 2019)

IT
&
Information
Management

Unrestricted

Risk

SRR3 - Lack of capacity and/or
capability to deliver an
effective policing service
(Constabulary Strategic Risk
Register March 2019)

IT Cyber Security
An allocation of ICT audit time to undertake a Cyber Security review based on 20 standard
controls, which include governance, inventories of hardware and software assets, control of
accounts/administration privileges, malware protection and incident response and

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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management. Are the Constabulary and OPCC’s IT solutions managed and deployed to
ensure data and systems are protected from malicious attack or accidental damage?
IT
&
Information
Management

Finance

SRR3 - Lack of capacity and/or
capability to deliver an
effective policing service
(Constabulary
Strategic
Register March 2019)

SRR5 - Lack
resources

of

financial

(Constabulary
Strategic
Register March 2019)

Finance

SRR5 - Lack
resources

of

Risk

Risk

financial

(Constabulary Strategic Risk
Register March 2019)

Finance

SRR5 - Lack
resources

of

financial

(Constabulary
Strategic
Register March 2019)

Unrestricted

Risk

IT Business Continuity
A review of the Constabulary and OPCC’s resilience and business continuity arrangements in
relation to IT. Has an analysis of critical systems been completed, impact assessed, together
with recovery points/time objectives? Have continuity plans been tested and, where
applicable, are outcomes as per SLAs achieved? Where continuity plans relate to outsourced
arrangements, is the Constabulary IT Function meeting its obligations around patching,
maintenance and testing back-ups for example?

15

Quarter 4

Payroll and Expenses
Payroll costs form the vast majority of police expenditure. A review to assess the key controls
in place covering the Payroll function at the Force including authorisation of starters and
leavers, timely addition to and removal from the payroll, authorisation of third-party
deductions, authorisation and evidence of amendments to payroll data including pay scale
and employee data. In addition, in 2019-20, we will also conduct a deep-dive into expenses
claims to ensure that, for a sample, these have been subject to the required scrutiny and
authorisation.

15

Quarter 3

Key Financial Controls
As part of our cyclical key financial controls review, we will focus on an area of accounts
payable; the authorisation of payments made, P2P and separation of duties throughout the
Accounts Payable Function. In addition, for 2019-20, we will look to consider how the
Constabulary is maximising income generation opportunities, which will align with audit
activity across SWAP Police Partners and look to provide some benchmarking information.
Note: sample testing to include some items of OPCC commissioning for both victims’ services
and other commissioning.

15

Quarter 3

15

Quarter 4

Overtime Payments
A review of the management of overtime payments to officers and staff through review of a
significant sample and/or data analytics where possible - are these appropriately verified,
authorised, subject to budgetary controls and collectively subject to senior management
scrutiny, with remedial measures put in place to manage this where necessary? How does
the data/management information inform future demand planning?

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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SRR5 - Lack
resources

of

financial

(Constabulary Strategic Risk
Register March 2019)

APPENDIX 1

Personal Issue of Assets
A review assessing how the Constabulary and OPCC manage assets that are distributed to
individuals, such as laptops, mobile phones and other specialist items. How are these issued
and authorised and records maintained to ensure that these assets remain with the
individual to whom they have been issued on a cyclical basis and are accurately reflected in
the accounts? How are updates to equipment, disposals and retrieval upon leaving the
organisation managed?

15

Quarter 3

15

Quarter 4

5

Throughout
Year

SRR6 - As a critical asset, poor
information / quality of data
affects decision making across
the organisation impacting
operationally, tactically and
strategically
(Constabulary Strategic Risk
Register March 2019)

Data Quality

Governance,
Fraud and
Risk
Management
Governance,
Fraud and
Risk
Management

N/A

Contribution to Regional Police Audit Work

N/A

Follow Up
5

Throughout
Year

Governance,
Fraud and
Risk
Management

N/A

Budget allocation to be utilised on following up recommendations previously made of
Priority 1 and 2 from Partial assurance opinion audits (or the equivalent system used by the
previous Auditors).
Planning, Reporting and Advice
Agreed allocation for attendance at Audit Committees, audit planning and any corporate
advice.

20

Throughout
Year

Total

180

IT
&
Information
Management

Unrestricted

A review of the information governance requirements around data collection, management,
retention and destruction at the strategic level – how have the General Data Protection Data
Regulations been incorporated within these? How do the Force and OPCC ensure that
data/information collected is in compliance with the information governance requirements?

Proposed Avon & Somerset contribution to regional working across SWAP Police Partners.
Area(s) of coverage to be determined by Directors of Finance.

SWAP work is completed to comply with the International Professional Practices Framework of the Institute of Internal Auditors, further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note.
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Proposed Audit Coverage by Quarter
Areas of Coverage and Brief Rationale

Proposed Days

Proposed Timing

15

Quarter 2

Payroll and Expenses

15
15

Quarter 3
Quarter 3

Key Financial Controls

15

Quarter 3

Personal Issue of Assets

15

Quarter 3

Refreshing Strategic Framework

15

Quarter 4

Fleet Management

15

Quarter 4

IT Business Continuity

15

Quarter 4

Overtime Payments

15

Quarter 4

Data Quality

15

Quarter 4

Contribution to Regional Police Audit Work

5

Throughout Year

Follow Up

5

Throughout Year

Planning, Reporting and Advice

20

Throughout Year

Workforce Plan
IT Cyber Security

Unrestricted
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The Internal Audit Charter
Purpose

The purpose of this Charter is to set out the nature, role, responsibility, status and authority of internal
auditing within Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC, and to outline the scope of internal audit work.

Approval

This Charter is provided for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 10 th July 2019 and will be reviewed
each year to confirm it remains accurate and up to date.

Provision of Internal Audit Services

The internal audit service is provided by the South West Audit Partnership Limited (SWAP). SWAP is a Local
Authority controlled company. This charter should be read in conjunction with the Service Agreement, which
forms part of the legal agreement between the SWAP partners.
The budget for the provision of the internal audit service is determined by Avon & Somerset Constabulary
and OPCC, in conjunction with the Members Meeting. The general financial provisions are laid down in the
legal agreement, including the level of financial contribution by the Constabulary and OPCC, and may only be
amended by unanimous agreement of the Members Meeting. The budget is based on an audit needs
assessment that was carried out when determining the level of contribution to SWAP by Avon & Somerset
Constabulary and OPCC. This is reviewed each year by Chief Finance Officers (as s151 Officers) in consultation
with the Chief Executive of SWAP.

Role of Internal Audit

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, state that: “A relevant authority must undertake an
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance
processes, taking into account the public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.”
Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and
improve the operations of the Forces and OPCCs. It helps Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC
accomplish their objectives by bringing a systematic disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.

Responsibilities of Management and of Internal Audit
Management1
Management is responsible for determining the scope, except where specified by statute, of internal audit
work and for deciding the action to be taken on the outcome of, or findings from, their work. Management
is responsible for ensuring SWAP has:
 the support of management and Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC; and
 direct access and freedom to report to senior management, including the two Section 151 Officers, OPCC
Chief Executive and the Joint Audit Committee.
Management is responsible for maintaining internal controls, including proper accounting records and other
management information suitable for running the Authority. Management is also responsible for the
appropriate and effective management of risk.

1

In this instance Management refers to senior management of the Constabulary and OPCC

Unrestricted
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Internal Audit
Internal audit is responsible for operating under the policies established by management in line with best
practice.
Internal audit is responsible for conducting its work in accordance with the Code of Ethics and Standards for
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as set by the Institute of Internal Auditors and further guided
by interpretation provided by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS); SWAP has been
independently assessed and found to be in Conformance with the Standards.
Internal audit is not responsible for any of the activities which it audits. SWAP staff will not assume
responsibility for the design, installation, operation or control of any procedures. Members of SWAP who
have transferred in to the department from other areas in Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC will not
be asked to review any aspects of their previous department's work until one year has passed since they left
that area.

Relationship with the External Auditors/Other Regulatory Bodies

Internal Audit will co-ordinate its work with others wherever this is beneficial to the organisation.

Status of Internal Audit in the Organisation

The Chief Executive of SWAP is responsible to the SWAP Board of Directors and the Members Meeting. The
Chief Executive of SWAP and the Assistant Director also report to the Chief Finance Officers (as s151 Officer),
and reports to the Joint Audit Committee as set out below.
Appointment or removal of the Chief Executive of SWAP is the sole responsibility of the Members Meeting.

Scope and authority of Internal Audit work

There are no restrictions placed upon the scope of internal audit's work. SWAP staff engaged on internal
audit work are entitled to receive and have access to whatever information or explanations they consider
necessary to fulfil their responsibilities to senior management. In this regard, internal audit may have access
to any records, personnel or physical property of Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC.
Internal audit work will normally include, but is not restricted to:
 reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information and the means used to
identify, measure, classify and report such information;
 evaluating and appraising the risks associated with areas under review and make proposals for improving
the management of risks;
 appraise the effectiveness and reliability of the enterprise risk management framework and recommend
improvements where necessary;
 assist management and Members to identify risks and controls with regard to the objectives of Avon &
Somerset Constabulary and OPCC;
 reviewing the systems established by management to ensure compliance with those policies, plans,
procedures, laws and regulations which could have a significant impact on operations and reports, and
determining whether Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC are in compliance;
 reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence of assets;
 appraising the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed;
 reviewing operations or programmes to ascertain whether results are consistent with established
objectives and goals and whether the operations or programmes are being carried out as planned;
 reviewing the operations of the Forces and OPCCs in support of Avon & Somerset Constabulary and OPCC;
 at the specific request of management, internal audit may provide consultancy services provided:
 the internal auditor’s independence is not compromised
 the internal audit service has the necessary skills to carry out the assignment, or can obtain such
skills without undue cost or delay
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the scope of the consultancy assignment is clearly defined and management have made proper
provision for resources within the annual audit plan
management understand that the work being undertaken is not internal audit work.

Planning and Reporting

SWAP will submit to the Joint Audit Committee, for approval, an annual internal audit plan, setting out the
recommended scope of their work in the period.
The annual plan will be developed with reference to the risks the organisation will be facing in the
forthcoming year, whilst providing a balance of current and on-going risks, reviewed on a cyclical basis. The
plan will be reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure it remains adequately resourced, current and addresses
new and emerging risks.
SWAP will carry out the work as agreed, report the outcome and findings, and will make recommendations
on the action to be taken as a result to the appropriate manager. SWAP will report at least four times a year
to the Joint Audit Committee. SWAP will also report a summary of their findings, including any persistent
and outstanding issues, to the Joint Audit Committee on a regular basis.
Internal audit reports will normally be by means of a brief presentation to the relevant manager accompanied
by a detailed report in writing. The detailed report will be copied to the relevant line management, who will
already have been made fully aware of the detail and whose co-operation in preparing the summary report
will have been sought. The detailed report will also be copied to the Chief Finance Officers (as s151 Officers)
and to other relevant line management.
The Assistant Director of SWAP will submit an annual report to the Joint Audit Committee providing an overall
opinion of the status of risk and internal control within the Constabulary and OPCC, based on the internal
audit work conducted during the previous year.
In addition to the reporting lines outlined above, the Chief Executive of SWAP and the Assistant Director have
the unreserved right to report directly to the Chair of the Joint Audit Committee, the OPCC’s Chief Executive
Officers or the External Audit Manager.
June 2019
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Mark Simmonds
Chief Financial Officer
Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner
Police Headquarters
Valley Road
Portishead
BS20 8JJ

Grant Thornton UK LLP
110 Bishopsgate
London
EC2N 4AY
T +44 (0)20 7383 5100
F +44 (0)20 7383 4715

30 April 2019
Dear Mark

Planned audit fee for 2019/20
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) provides the framework for local public audit.
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has been specified as an appointing person under the Act
and the Local Authority (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 and had the power to make auditor
appointments for audits of opted-in local government bodies from 2018/19. The Police and Crime
Commissioner for Avon and Somerset and Chief Constable for Avon and Somerset are both opted-in
bodies.
For opted-in bodies PSAA's responsibilities also include setting fees and monitoring the quality of
auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the PSAA website.
Scale fee
PSAA published the 2019/20 scale fees for opted-in bodies at the end of March 2019, following a
consultation process. Individual scale fees have been maintained at the same level as in 2018/19,
unless there were specific circumstances which required otherwise. Further details are set out on the
PSAA website. The scale fee for the Police and Crime Commissioner for 2019/20 has been set by PSAA
at £27,992, which is the same as in 2018/19. The scale fee for the Chief Constable for 2019/20 has
been set by PSAA at £14,438. The total scale fee for 2019/20 for the audit of the group financial
statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner, including the statements of the Chief Constable, is
£42,430.
PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to provide
the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with supporting working papers,
within agreed timeframes'.
The audit planning process for 2019/20, including the risk assessment, will continue as the year
progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.
Scope of the audit fee
There are no changes to the overall work programme for audits of police bodies for 2019/20. Under the
provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office (NAO) is responsible
for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and guidance for auditors. Audits of the accounts for
2019/20 will be undertaken under this Code. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is
available on the NAO website.
The scale fee covers:


our audit of your financial statements;

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742.
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton
UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.

grantthornton.co.uk



our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources
(the value for money conclusion); and



our work on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable).

PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an objection as
valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee.
Value for Money conclusion
The Code requires us to consider whether the Police and Crime Commissioner has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources. This is
known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.
The NAO issued its latest guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for police bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the Police
and Crime Commissioner has put proper arrangements in place.
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people.
Billing schedule
Fees for the Police and Crime Commissioner audit will be billed as follows:
Audit fee

£

September 2019

6,998

December 2019

6,998

March 2020

6,998

June 2020

6,998
27,992

Total

Outline audit timetable
We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures between November 2019 and March
2020. Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan setting out our
findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and work on the VfM conclusion will
be completed by July 2020 and work on the whole of government accounts return in August 2020.
Phase of work

Timing

Audit planning

November Joint Audit Plan
2019 to
March
2020

The plan summarises the findings of our
audit planning and our approach to the
audit of the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s accounts and VfM
arrangements.

Final accounts audit

June and
July 2020

This report sets out the findings of our
accounts audit and VfM work for the
consideration of the PCC as the
individual charged with governance.

VfM conclusion

November Joint Audit Findings Report (to the
2019 to
PCC as ‘the individual charged with
July 2020 governance’)

and interim audit

Whole of government August
accounts
2020

Outputs

Joint Audit Findings Report (to the
PCC as ‘the individual charged with
governance’)

Opinion on the WGA return

Comments

As above

This work will be completed alongside
the accounts audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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Annual audit
letter

August
2020

Joint Annual Audit Letter to the Police
and Crime Commissioner

The letter will summarise the findings of
all aspects of our work.

Our team
The key members of the audit team for 2019/20 are:
Name

Phone Number

E-mail

Iain Murray

0207 728 3328

Iain.G.Murray@uk.gt.com

Jackson Murray

0117 305 7859

Jackson.Murray@uk.gt.com

Additional work
The scale fee excludes any work the Police and Crime Commissioner may request that we may agree to
undertake outside of our Code audit. Any additional work will be separately agreed, and a detailed
project specification and fee agreed with the Police and Crime Commissioner.
Quality assurance
We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way dissatisfied or
would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in the first instance.
Alternatively, you may wish to contact Jon Roberts, our Public Sector Assurance regional lead partner,
via Jon.Roberts@uk.gt.com.
Yours sincerely

Iain Murray
Key Audit Partner
Grant Thornton UK LLP

Grant Thornton UK LLP.

3

Nick Adams
Chief Financial Officer
Office of the Chief Constable
Avon and Somerset Police
Police Headquarters
Valley Road
Portishead
BS20 8JJ

Grant Thornton UK LLP
110 Bishopsgate
London
EC2N 4AY
T +44 (0)20 7383 5100
F +44 (0)20 7383 4715

30 April 2019

Dear Nick

Planned audit fee for 2019/20
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) provides the framework for local public audit.
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has been specified as an appointing person under the Act
and the Local Authority (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 and had the power to make auditor
appointments for audits of opted-in local government bodies from 2018/19. The Chief Constable is an
opted-in body.
For opted-in bodies PSAA's responsibilities also include setting fees and monitoring the quality of
auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the PSAA website.
Scale fee
PSAA published the 2019/20 scale fees for opted-in bodies at the end of March 2019, following a
consultation process. Individual scale fees have been maintained at the same level as in 2018/19,
unless there were specific circumstances which required otherwise. Further details are set out on the
PSAA website. The scale fee for the Chief Constable for 2019/20 has been set by PSAA at £14,438,
which is the same as in 2018/19.
PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to provide
the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with supporting working papers,
within agreed timeframes'.
The audit planning process for 2019/20, including the risk assessment, will continue as the year
progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.
Scope of the audit fee
There are no changes to the overall work programme for audits of police bodies for 2019/20. Under the
provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office (NAO) is responsible
for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and guidance for auditors. Audits of the accounts for
2019/20 will be undertaken under this Code. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is
available on the NAO website.
The scale fee covers:


our audit of your financial statements;



our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources
(the value for money conclusion); and

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742.
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton
UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.
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our work on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable).

PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an objection as
valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee.
Value for Money conclusion
The Code requires us to consider whether the Chief Constable has put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources. This is known as the Value for
Money (VfM) conclusion.
The NAO issued its latest guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for police bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the Chief
Constable has put proper arrangements in place.
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people.
Billing schedule
Fees will be billed as follows:
Audit fee

£

September 2019

3,609.50

December 2019

3,609.50

March 2020

3,609.50

June 2020

3,609.50
14,438

Total

Outline audit timetable
We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in November 2019 to March 2020.
Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan setting out our findings and
details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and work on the VfM conclusion will be completed
by July 2020 and work on the whole of government accounts return in August 2020.
Phase of work

Timing

Audit planning

November Joint Audit Plan
2019 to
March
2020

The plan summarises the findings of our
audit planning and our approach to the
audit of the Chief Constable's accounts
and VfM arrangements.

Final accounts audit

June and
July 2020

This report sets out the findings of our
accounts audit and VfM work for the
consideration of the Chief Constable as
the individual charged with governance.

VfM conclusion

November Joint Audit Findings Report (to the
2019 to
Chief Constable as ‘the individual
July 2020 charged with governance’)

and interim audit

Outputs

Joint Audit Findings Report (to the
Chief Constable as ‘the individual
charged with governance’)

Comments

As above

Whole of government August
accounts
2020

Opinion on the WGA return

This work will be completed alongside
the accounts audit.

Annual audit

Joint Annual Audit Letter to the Chief
Constable

The letter will summarise the findings of
all aspects of our work.

letter

August
2020

Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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Our team
The key members of the audit team for 2019/20 are:
Name

Phone Number

E-mail

Iain Murray

0207 728 3328

Iain.G.Murray@uk.gt.com

Jackson Murray

0117 305 7859

Jackson.Murray@uk.gt.com

Additional work
The scale fee excludes any work the Chief Constable may request that we may agree to undertake
outside of our Code audit. Any additional work will be separately agreed, and a detailed project
specification and fee agreed with the Chief Constable.
Quality assurance
We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way dissatisfied or
would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in the first instance.
Alternatively, you may wish to contact Jon Roberts, our Public Sector Assurance regional lead partner,
via Jon.Roberts@uk.gt.com.
Yours sincerely

Iain Murray
Key Audit Partner
Grant Thornton UK LLP

Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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Item 9
Questions

Answers

PCC and Group Accounts
Page 6 – is there any commentary to accompany the outturns? E.g. what
drove the £6.8m overspend on central costs?

The more detailed 2018/19 outturn report is presented and discussed at
the PCC’s Police and Crime Board meeting and published on the PCC’s
website at https://www.avonandsomerset‐pcc.gov.uk/Document‐
Library/TERM‐TWO/Police‐and‐Crime‐Board/1‐May‐2019/10‐Item‐6‐2018‐
19‐Revenue‐and‐Capital‐Financial‐Performance‐v1.pdf.
The overspend on central costs is reported in detail here, but in summary
relates to a number of year‐end adjustments made after the detail of the
rest of the outturn position was known. These adjustments included a
£6.8m transfer of funds to our earmarked reserves, a £1.7m increase to our
insurance provision and a £1.1m provision made in relation to outstanding
contractual liabilities associated with our aborted attempt to join the
Multi‐Force Shared Service (MFSS).

Page 8 3.6 last para – Do JAC see the results of the risk based assurance
programme over service delivery?

The service assurance work is evidenced and reviewed at PCB and
JAC sees the minutes and MOS notes from PCB. In addition the risk
register is updated based in part on the findings of assurance work.
Further, HMIC findings re shared with JAC.

5.11 Risk Profile – the bullets cover the main issues for future performance
but there is no reference to the discontinued collaboration initiatives or
the clear challenges associated with making these work in the future. Given
the collective challenges for all forces which will need collaboration to
address I think this would be relevant.

Tri Force has ended in April 2019 and a business case for the return to
Force has been approved and is being implemented. As such the risk is well
managed. Other collaborations continue. Future collaborations will be
assessed on their merits.

Page 17 2.1 – More one for SWAP but I assume they have the PCC’s Police
and Crime plan as an input for their audit plan?

Yes – the plan is available on the website, and they were provided this as
part of the initial discussions had with them when we were deciding on
whether to join them or to compete our internal audit provision.

Para 4 – What are “Memorandum Items”? It would be helpful, too, to see
a break‐down of capital items by estate, fleet, IT/comms, other.

These are explained in more detail in our outturn report which is reported
to the Police and Crime Board and published on the PCC’s website (see link
provided in response above).

Item 9
In short these memorandum items of capital expenditure relate to items
which sit outside of our normal Avon and Somerset capital programme,
and are often wholly or part‐funded from ring‐fenced sources. In 2018/19
items of expenditure included here were:‐
 Office for Data Analytics – this was a collaborative initiative to develop
a collaborative data analytics capability with other organisations and
bodies, building on the experience within Avon and Somerset of our
own data visualisation and predictive analytical capability. This was
wholly funded from Police Transformation Funding (a separate grant
scheme run by the Home Office);
 Counter Terrorism Strategic Firearms Officer (CTSFO) Estates costs –
the government increased its specific grant funding of the number of
CTSFO’s in the South West with the addition of a further 16 posts in
Avon and Somerset, where they are shared with both Gloucestershire
and Wiltshire. In order to accommodate this growth we have had to
incur some capital costs at our Almondsbury site, including the
provision of a bigger secure armoury facility. This cost was funded
partly from grant, and with contributions from Gloucestershire and
Wiltshire;
 Speed Enforcement Unit relocation – during the year we relocated our
speed enforcement team into new premises in Portishead. This
created capacity at our central Bristol site which is currently being
redeveloped into our central Bristol response base, and ensured the
SEU had fit for purpose, stand‐alone premises. The costs of the speed
enforcement unit are met by the referral income received from
individuals opting to go on a speed awareness course when caught
speeding. The surplus on this funding is ring‐fenced into specific
earmarked reserve, and it is this funding which we used to support the
capital costs associated with this relocation;
 Collaborative fleet – Avon and Somerset host the South West Regional
Organised Crime Unit and the South West Counter Terrorism
Intelligence Unit. Both of these are funded outside of our core budget
(SWCTIU wholly grant funding, SWROCU part funded by grant and part
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by regional contributions). Both entities require a dedicated fleet,
which is supported by Avon and Somerset, but all costs including the
capital replacement, are funded through these units.
P10 para 5.5 – Capital investment of £70m and recruitment of 400 extra
officers should make a huge difference to the force’s capability.
Congratulations on making this possible.

Thanks – this is possible as a consequence of our delivery of savings,
combined with the increases to council tax made in 2019/20.

P50/51 – the breakdown of collaboration costs is useful. Thank you.

Noted.

How does the ratio of central costs and miscellaneous compare with other
forces?

Central and miscellaneous costs are simply our internal classification of
costs for the purposes of our own budget management. Therefore it is not
easy to compare these with other forces.
If you are interested in understanding how our costs compare with other
forces across a range of commonly understood and applied categories,
then it is worth looking at the Value for Money (VfM) profiles which are
published by HMICFRS ‐
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/our‐work/article/value‐
for‐money‐inspections/value‐for‐money‐profiles/value‐for‐money‐
dashboards/

P20 last bullet point (no. 4) – Why is the MTFP 4 years and the capital plan
5 years? Is it desirable and/or possible to align the two?

This is an error we will correct. The MTFP is a five year plan and therefore
mirrors the same period of the Capital Plan.

P36 – The Future – Are our planning assumptions and sources of estimation We undertake benchmarking throughout the MTFP setting process. The
majority of our assumptions are in line with the national picture, except
in line with those used by other forces? No doubt GT can advise.
where this can be explained for issues of local variance.
One point where our assumptions do differ from other forces is in relation
to the top‐up grant funding for pensions cost increased. Most forces have
been optimistic and assumed this income continues. We have at this stage
taken a more pessimistic approach, assuming that this separate grant
funding does not continue. We have taken this approach so as to ensure
prudence in our financial planning.
P48 – There were 8 very costly redundancies in 2018/19 totalling £840k.
What caused this?

The costs of redundancies in 2018/19 were high, reflecting the extensive
restructuring of our enabling services which was undertaken during the
year.
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The costs here would include both redundancy, and where applicable,
pension strain costs. These pension strain costs relate to the rules that
operate within the Local Government Pension Scheme whereby if you
make someone over the age of 55 redundant, you in effect are early
retiring them. This therefore requires us as the employer to make an
additional payment into the pension fund to enable a full pension value to
be taken based on the pay and length of service of the individual at the
point they were made redundant.
P50/51 – para 13.6 – are there cost implications from the ending of the
Triforce ACC role?

No – the role holder retired at the point the role came to an end.

P50/51 – paras 13.7 and 13.8‐ Is it correct that Gloucestershire is not in the
Forensics or Special Branch collaborations?

Yes this is correct.

P64, para 25.1 – Revenue reserves and general fund – Hinckley Point –
there are likely to be delays in completion of the build. If so, will the
remaining £53k have to cover the entire period, or will the constabulary
receive further funding to reflect the extended period of policing needed?

The agreement with EDF is for the ongoing provision of neighbourhood
policing in and around the Hinkley Point site for the duration of its build.
The funding is annual in support of specific posts, and this reserve reflects
any unspent funds which are ring‐fenced for the purpose the funding was
originally provided. Any delays in the build are therefore not affecting this
as it simply reflects a balance on recurring funding at any point in time.

There is no reference anywhere to the likely adverse effect of Brexit on the
MTFP, both in terms of increased demand (e.g public order) and/or
reduced funding. Surely this warrants some mention as a contingency?

The Brexit risk is considered by OPCC in terms of issues of: central
government incapacity; political turmoil; and social unrest. These may
impact delivery of the P&C Plan and on the future funding settlements. The
risk is hard to quantify currently.

There is reference on p5, para 2 of the OCC accounts to the ending of
Triforce, but this is not referenced in other parts of the accounts, where
collaboration is described (e.g. OCC accounts p15 line 1). Should it be?

We are satisfied with the references to Tri Force across both the PCC and
OCC accounts as the spend level is unchanged and the service has
continued with minimal disruption now wholly in Force.

Reading the accounts, it was clear that the constabulary is embedding
changes in its people and processes to align the organisation fully with the
current PCC’s Police and Crime Plan. There is a fault in the system, in that,
with PCC elections every 4 years, a change of PCC, to someone with
different priorities, could cause upheaval and discontinuity. How resilient
would the force be to such a change?

The changes that the Constabulary are embedding are more focussed on
the processes by which we operate to implement the police and crime
plan. They set out how we embed the priorities set in the plan through our
strategies, and into delivery plans that are continuously assured through a
clear assurance framework.
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As our focus has been on process as well as content, we are happy that the
process will be what ensure that we are resilient to a change in PCC should
that also result in a significant change in priorities for us.
We are nearing the end of the first quarter of 2019/20 now, and I assume
no PEEL inspection has yet happened. Do we have a date or, if not, should
the accounts be amended to reflect that it is now more likely to occur in
the second quarter?

The PEEL inspection was completed in May. The initial feedback we have
received is positive, with some areas we recognise continue to need our
focus. The outcome and results of this are not however expected until
later in the year, after we have signed off and published our final audited
accounts.

There is no explicit reference in either set of accounts to the impact of
supporting Wiltshire Constabulary throughout the Salisbury Novichok
poisoning. How were these costs covered and where in the accounts do
they appear?

There is no specific need to make reference to this within our accounts. It
was clearly a serious and significant incident, which was very impactful on
Wiltshire in particular. As a neighbouring force there was an impact on our
resourcing as we, along with virtually every other force from around the
country, provided officer support under mutual aid arrangements. All of
the costs incurred therefore were covered by income charged to Wiltshire,
which in turn they were able to obtain grant funding from the Home Office
to cover. The detail of the true cost and income to cover this would
therefore be contained within the accounts of Wiltshire.

P 9 (P6CC) ‐ can I assume that the projected MTFP will remain the
same, given the uplift in new staff and the related oncosts ‐ training,
equipment, recruitment HR etc going forward? Is this being managed
through earmarked reserves/savings accrued? (The note on P10
regarding pensions and pay rises is noted). Or will this be balanced in
the next financial year (and going forward) by a reduction in
overtime?

The MTFP presented and approved in February includes costings for all
growth, including the uplift in officer numbers and the associated on costs
associated with this.
With these costs built in we are projected to be able to balance the budget
for the next two years, after which we will need to identify further savings
if we are to retain the uplift and the benefits we believe this will bring.

P11 (P5CC) Collaboration is mentioned as an important tool to
manage future challenges and funding issues. Given our mixed
experience to date (with other constabularies rather than other
partners) is this a safe financial assumption? I appreciate we need to
keep trying!

There are no financial assumptions made within our MTFP that are
predicated on initiating new collaborations. We remain convinced that,
despites its challenges, that collaboration remains a means of unlocking
benefits and efficiencies that are worth pursuing, and we will continue to
do so. However, we remain cautious about making financial assumptions
of the benefits that will be derived until collaborations reach the more
formal and detailed stages of discussion.

Item 9
P9 We seem to have been waiting forever for the CSP/ funding
formula to be revisited and given the delays in Brexit, I am
concerned both about the timing of Summer 2019, and that there
will be a further switchback to austerity and reduced budgets, and
not "just" savings to be achieved. Given that the critical NAO report
on Police funding does not seem to have embarrassed the
government one jot, does our environmental scanning tell us
anything about this?

We would agree that the landscape in which we are having to make
forward financial projections presents a number of challenges.
Our MFTP makes no assumptions about any changes in the funding
formula. Even if we were confident of this being addressed within the next
5 years, there is no clarity on how it will be addressed and ultimately how
this might affect the value of our grant funding.
We believe our MTFP is currently a good mix of optimism and prudence
about the future. We would be very supportive of moves to provide
clearer medium term settlements from Government. Such a change would
significantly increase the confidence within which we are able to plan.

There is a one off grant of £2.8m to offset the increase in police
officer pension contributions. I see that this increase has been
accounted for in the MTFS. Are you sufficiently assured that the
increase of employer contributions of 31% is sustainable?

As identified above, our current assumption is that this funding does not
continue beyond 2019/20. As such we have assumed that we will need to
continue to fund the uplift in the employer contributions here. The
sustainability of maintaining an employer contribution rate of 31% is
therefore implicit within our plans.

At a time of political flux have measures been taken to ensure
prudent investment of funds short and medium term. Is the
portfolio balanced to ensure risk management?

Funds are invested in short and medium term deposits in
counterparties with high levels of credit rating. Currently £30‐40m of
cash is invested with counterparties and maturity times range
between 1 day and 321 days and returns are between 0.4% to 1.1%.
In addition £3m is invested in the local authority property fund with
a return in excess of 4% per annum – this is intended to be a longer
term investment. A treasury management strategy is reviewed with
the PCC annually and published on the website. We are operating
within all our prudential indicators.

What liabilities have been identified regarding the impact of
increasing protest/county lines/mental health incidents etc and the
subsequent impact on police officers. Has the likely cost of lost
hours/sickness/early retirement been taken into account in the
MTFS?

The £10 million general fund reserve I set aside to manage future
risks. In addition there is an earmarked (but discretionary) reserve of
£1.5 million set aside to manage the costs of a major operation. A
very significant event may also attract funding support from a Home
Office Special Grant.
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What is the make up of long term liabilities identified on the balance
sheet?

These are broken down on the face of the balance sheet:‐
 Long‐term borrowing = £37,018k (note 21)
 Long‐term provisions = £11,513k (note 23)
 Capital grants and receipts in advance = £189k
 PFI Liability = £54,951k
 Pensions Liability = £3,890,594k

What work is being undertaken to ensure the adequacy of the
removal of personal information from police databases within
required timescales?

This remains under review by the DPO and ongoing processes to
ensure compliance with GDPR. Initial GDPR audit funding are being
acted upon by the DPO.

Why have the IFRS 9 amendments, 16 leases and the annual
improvement to the IFRS standard 2014 to 16 not been adopted?

We produce accounts which are in accordance with the CIPFA Code.
It is through our adherence to the Code, and the codes adoption of
IFRS’s that we would therefore produce financial statements that
comply with the latest IFRS’s. Where we have not yet adopted these
standards, it is a reflection of the ongoing work by CIPFA to interpret
the IFRS into the CIPFA Code so that it makes sense in the context of
public sector financial statements.

Remuneration of senior employees (page 46) Note 2 deputy chief
constable annualised salary £128,496. This is the identical amount
to that in note 3 – is this correct?

This is correct but is potentially confused by the lack of notes
referencing to the explanations provide (ACTION add note
reference).
The note referred to is what we reported in our accounts last year.
In short we present this note based on the position the individual
held at the end of the year, or if they left during the year the post
held at the point they left. In 17/18 our former DCC left the
Constabulary – and therefore we included the value of their full
salary to show what would have been incurred had they been in post
for the full 12 months.
Our new DCC was promoted from the rank of ACC, and therefore had
12 months employment, but only part of that year related to the
rank she held at the end of the year. We have therefore
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supplemented our disclosure to show the full salary of that post had
they been in post for the full 12 months of the year.
Joint arrangements (page 37) – ROCU – why have the costs increased The variance can in part be explained by increases for inflationary
from £7,560,722 in 2017/18 to £9,297,703 in 2018/19?
pressures, which alone account for £140k of the uplift. However, the
big difference was the inclusion of additional capabilities which had
transferred from individual forces into ROCU during this period.
These additional functions were:‐
 CSE Co‐ordinators ‐ £89k
 Prison Intelligence Officers ‐ £485k
 Tactical Support Units ‐ £1,536k
The uplift of these were tempered by the introduction of a
budgetary vacancy factor in the SWROCU budgets for the first time
in 2018/19.
Joint arrangements (page 37) – Tri‐Force ACC costs. Why have these
increased from £110,483 in 17/18 to £165,416 in 18/19?

In 17/18 this position was vacant for several months. In 18/19 this
post was filled for the entirety of the financial year.

Commissioners Community Action Fund – How are these projects
monitored to ensure payment is linked to results achieved?

Most CCAF grants awarded are under £5k each so measurement has
to be proportionate to the resource required. The PCC herself visits a
number of CCAF funded projects each year as part of community
days – and to inspect outcomes.

CC Accounts

Page 5 last para – we provide the comparative ranking for last year
but not the comparative failure rate. For clarity should we not
include last year’s failure rate as well?

Agreed – we will make this amendment.

Page 6 4.1 Revenue Outturn – General point, I struggled with what
the percentages in brackets represented. For example in para 4 the
£10.9m I think should be 3.7% not 4.1% if the budget was £297.7m?
Or 10.9m is 4.1% of 265.8 m which is not a number I could see.

You are correct the 4.1% figure is incorrect. It should be 3.9% (being
£10.9m as a percentage of the budget of £279.7m). We will correct this.
All other % have been checked and are correct.
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Page 8 Where are the inflation assumptions sourced from?

Pay inflation – this is set through CFO attendance at national finance
events and through benchmarking assumptions against other
Constabularies assumptions.
General inflation – These are set with reference to both RPI and CPI indices,
as well as considerations of affordability.
Fuel and Utilities inflation – These are set at a higher rate than general
inflation, recognising the historic trend on these costs and the more
volatile fluctuations they are prone to.
Business Rates inflation – These are set following insight into the market by
our professional advisors.

On pages 3 and 5, the organisation charts are illegible both on screen Understood – we will see if there is a way in which we can represent this so
as to make these organisation charts more legible for the reader.
and as hard copy. In the final version, could they be printed
landscape and referred to in the text?
p5 para 3, Operational Performance – this made pleasing reading,
felt realistic and suggests a continuing upward trend, making the
revised Mission, Vision and Values credible. (Incidentally, para 2 line
1 should be “implying” not “inferring” and in the third line of the
same paragraph, “having” would be better plain English than
“realising”).

Thank you for the feedback. We will make the amendments you suggest.

P7 para 4.2 – Congratulations on the procurement savings, which are
impressive.

Thank you for the feedback – we recognise that we are achieving strong
performance here.

P19 Risk Management para 1 line 5 – I think “assurances” should
read “actions

Agreed – we will amend.

P32, Income and Expenditure by nature – this is missing. Please may
JAC members receive the missing table when it is available, before
the 10/7/19 JAC meeting?

Apologies. This only appears to be the case in the version you have been
given. The table is shown in the version which has been published online ‐
https://www.avonandsomerset‐pcc.gov.uk/Document‐Library/TERM‐
TWO/Statement‐of‐Accounts/2018‐19/CC‐Statement‐of‐Accounts‐2018‐
2019v2.pdf
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P8 para 5 – Factors increasing budget requirement, bullet point 5 –
Please explain the reference to “market instability”, which is likely to
increase the cost of providing Forensics.

In 2012 the Government closed the Forensic Science Service, thereby
opening up the market of forensic science services to the market. Over the
intervening years the market has been epitomised by reducing prices,
whilst a small number of suppliers fought for market share.
This model has ultimately proved unsustainable, with several suppliers now
suggesting they are at risk of going under or withdrawing from the market
completely.
The issue is one which has received a national response, with a Gold Group
being run chaired by the Chief Constable lead for forensics. It has visibility
of central government, with the policing minister specifically referencing
these concerns in the letter which accompanied the confirmation of the
police funding settlement.

P18 para 1 – implies that the CC reviews internal audit arrangements
at least annually. Surely this is mainly a JAC responsibility?

We will look at the wording here. The responsibility is to review the
effectiveness of the governance framework, informed by the work of our
internal auditors.

P7 (P10 on PCC accounts) Raising council tax has become a necessity
but do we have confidence in relying on this income stream?
Increased costs of living predicted in leaving the European Union
could leave us with a less sympathetic population.

The assumptions for increases in council tax precept are set at 1.99% for
the next four years. This equates to an annual increase of £4.33 in 20/21
and £4.60 by 23/24.
We recognise that there will continue to be pressure and challenge in
growing the precept. We believe our assumptions around future precept
growth to be modest, but recognise that this will be subject to annual
review and consultation.
We also recognise that decisions by central government around the value
of grant funding are equally important considerations when setting out our
approach to further precept increases.

P19 para4 I would welcome an additional note from the CFO telling
us when he hopes his department will be back to full strength?

The new Head of Finance has been in post since the beginning of April. The
remainder of the team is largely in post, with the main outstanding vacancy
now being our Corporate Finance Business Partner ‐ Financial Accounting.
The advertisement of this post has recently closed, and we are hoping to
interview and appoint to this role in the coming weeks.

Item 9
P16 New learning initiatives sound exciting. Are they costed from
existing training budgets or is this new spending? Is the new degree
course funded centrally?

The new learning initiatives have been funded from within existing training
and leadership development budgets.

AVON AND SOMERSET POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER
RISK
Risk/ Objective

03/07/2019

Description

Impact

Controls and Assurances

Ineffective governance, scrutiny, oversight of
services and outcomes delivered by the
Constabulary including delivery of the
Strategic Policing Requirement.

Reduced Public confidence
Relationship with Constabulary
not optimal
Government criticism, penalties
Panel criticism
Sub standard performance
results and poor inspection
outcomes
Force not efficient /effective
Risks not managed
Financial loss
Reputational risk

Risk owner: PCC / OPCC
CEO

Ineffective arrangements for complaints and
serious cases.
Failure to ensure adequate transparency of
the OPCC and/or the Constabulary.
Failure to ensure effective systems and
controls are in place to manage risk and
support the delivery of service.
SR1

Failure to hold Chief Constable to account.
Governance Failure Failure to address conduct or performance of
Chief Constable.
Failure to ensure Chief Constable sets
appropriate culture, ethics and values.
Failure to address complaints against the
Chief Constable.
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ASSESSMENT

MITIGATION OF RISK

PCC Police and Crime
Board
PCC Chief Constable 1:1s
Representation at
Constabulary CMB
Audit Committee, audit,
annual governance
statement
Scrutiny of complaints - IRP
Service Delivery assurance
OPCC visits
Police and Crime Panel
meetings
DCC attendance at OPCC
SLT
Force Management
Statements

Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
PCC and Chief Executive reviewed governance
arrangements and a revised governance structure
has been adopted with agreement from the
Constabulary.
4

4

16

These include a monthly PCC Board, formalising
scrutiny, key decisions and performance tracking.
Governance arrangements were reviewed by
RSM. Positive assurance from RSM audit opinion.
The internal audit report on governance concluded
that the PCC and CC have an adequate and
effective framework for risk management,
governance and internal control.

12

3

4

The Constabulary are revising governance
arrangements, and structures are stabilising.
Anticipate a stable and embedded governance by
summer 2019.
There are operational concerns in respect of
capacity (see commentary on SR3 and
Constabulary Risk Register).
This risk is under review given the number of
issues noted by OPCC in relation to compliance.

RISK
Risk/ Objective

Description

Impact

Controls and Assurances

Failure to sufficiently assess needs.

Lack of understanding of
policing-related needs of the
population

Risk owner: PCC / OPCC
CEO

Failure to agree an appropriate Police and
Crime Plan with the Chief Constable.
Failure to deliver the Police & Crime Plan.

SR2
Police and Crime Plan:
Setting the plan,
delivery of the plan

MITIGATION OF RISK

PCC priorities not agreed, set
or delivered
Public confidence eroded
Panel criticism
Increased demand
Increased levels of crime
Increased perception of being
unsafe

PCC/Chief Constable
meetings
Police and Crime Board
Representation at
Constabulary CMB
Qlik Sense App
Staff survey
Audit Committee
Panel Meetings
SDAs
Contacts analysis
Forum analysis
General Public Confidence
Scrutiny of complaints and
conduct
Audits and Inspections
(HMICFRS; RSM)

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
The Police and Crime Plan has been developed
collaboratively. Delivery plans underpin the
strategy.
5

4

20

Internal assurance mechanisms are in place to
evaluate delivery of the Plan's objectives.
Organisational change is embedding
(Neighbourhood Policing Model, Lighthouse
Safeguarding Unit and redesign of Enabling
Services) but remains both a threat and an
opportunity in terms of Plan delivery.

16

4

The Strategic Threat Assessment and Strategic
Intelligence Requirements documents raise
concerns around the Constabulary's ability to
deliver against the Plan, but HMICFRS
inspections indicate good progress.

4
The Annual Report 2017-18 indicated
performance improvements in PEEL inspections,
Public Confidence and control over
Communication Centre abandonment rates, and
decline in performance related to criminal justice
outcomes and victim satisfaction.

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Risk/ Objective
Description
Impact
Controls and Assurances
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
Outturn for 18/19 is £6m core underspend used to
Risk owner: PCC / CFO
Run out of money - require
Failure to agree a balanced Constabulary
fund provisions and capital. New savings agreed
intervention
budget with the Chief Constable.
with Chief mostly from Enabling services are in
Medium and long term
Govt. intervention
process of being delivered.
Reputation / public confidence financial planning
Failure to fund the budget.
MTFP - Cost pressure from pay and pension
Regular oversight of revenue
lost
Running an unsustainable budget deficit
funding means £5m annual savings needed by
& capital budget
Unable to fund adequate or
running out of funds.
4
5
20
March 2024 to balance the MTFP and additional
Maintain adequate riskminimum service
Unable to borrow as required
savings are required to generate investment funds
Unable to fund delivery of PCC assessed reserves
Failure to set precept as required.
if funding after 2019/20 does not improve in the
Audit Committee / Internal
priorities
CSR.
Audit
Unable to afford change.
Failure to deliver the budget.
Treasury Management
Inefficiency in use of police
Unable to meet financial obligations as they
Capital plan being reviewed - funding risk as
fall due, reserves insufficient to cover deficits. funds wastes money and harms strategy in place outcomes
capital receipts reduce as less assets to sell.
reviewed by CFOs and
reputation
Unable to manage or control budgets.
£15m borrowing faclity agreed to fund longer term
Finance meeting
Savings not delivered in sufficient time,
assets over next 4 years.
HMIC efficiency inspection
sequence or scope.
SR3
regime
Reserves stable but will be consumed - forecast
Financial Incapability & Failure to ensure value for money in OPCC
12
useable non ring fenced reserves to be £12 million
and
across
the
delegated
budgets
to
the
Chief
VFM
by 2022 (4% of net PCC annual budget).
Constable.
Police Funding formula review for 2020.
RISK

MITIGATION OF RISK

3

Precept agreed £24 rise per annum for band D in
2019-20, then revert to 1.99% capped increase.
Thereafter. Pay awards assumed at 2% for staff
and officers.

4

◄►

RISK
Risk/ Objective

SR4
Failure to Engage with
the public

Description

MITIGATION OF RISK
Impact

Failure to effectively engage with local people, Reputational damage
Reduction/loss of satisfaction
communities and stakeholders.
and confidence in OPCC and in
Failure to understand people's priorities and Police by local people
Partnership relationships
issues re policing and crime.
damaged
Threat to Police legitimacy Not taking account of local people's views,
withdrawn support
only "loud voices" and single issue voices
Animosity towards police/OPCC
heard.
Police and Crime plan and
actual delivery not aligned to
public concerns and priorities

Controls and Assurances
Risk owner: PCC / OPCC
CEO/Head of Comms

Meetings with LA chairs/
CEOs; CSP Chairs; local
community group leaders
PCC Forums, community
days, attendance at events,
meeting community groups

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
Opportunities exist to increase community
engagement at forums, events etc. Opportunity to
increase engagement with people from diverse
communities presented by the establishment of
the SOP panel.
4
3
12
PCC and COG have developed a joint comms
plan (proactive and reactive) to ensure closer
working and resource allocation. This is working
well.
Additional drop-ins and more informal approach
seems to be being well-received (Easton
Community Centre and Malcolm X Centre).

Web site, twitter & social
media
Representation on CSPs,
Children's Trusts, LCJB,
Health and Wellbeing
Boards
OCC/OPCC Comms
meetings
Gold Groups as required

9
Engagement activity re precept proposal has seen
a good level of engagement.
3

There are concerns over community tensions in
Bristol.

3

◄►

Operation Remedy Communications Plan is under
development.

RISK
Risk/ Objective

Description

Impact

Controls and Assurances

Failure to:

Delivery failure
Reputation / public confidence
Relationship with Constabulary
and partners
Government penalties
Poor assessment results

Risk owner: Head of C&P

Deliver community safety, victims services
and other partnership outcomes effectively.

SR5

MITIGATION OF RISK

OPCC Business and
Delivery Plan
OPCC commissioning team
Governance Boards,
scheme of governance
Victims service established
by OPCC/OCC, with regular
review meetings
OPCC Risk Register
OPCC Issue Register

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
SARC and ASCC service re-commissioning
processes are complete and services live. Still
some risk to service provision.
4

4

16

Victim services re-commissioning - services have
gone live
Commissioning of acute therapeutic services for
victims of sexual violence led by CCG with OPCC
and NHSE funding in mobilisation phase.

8

Commissioning &
Services
2

4

Ascend out of court disposals programme now live
- interim evaluation due in June. Pathway and
approach for hate crime still to be finalised and
signed off
Successful bids into national funding streams
(Early Intervention Youth Programme, Modern
Slavery etc) - referrals into EIYP being addressed

RISK
Risk/ Objective

SR6

MITIGATION OF RISK

Description

Impact

Controls and Assurances

Failure to:

Delivery failure
Reputation / public confidence
Relationship with Constabulary
and partners
Government penalties
Poor assessment results

Risk owner: PCC / OPCC
CEO, CFO, Office/HR
Manager and Head of C&P

Set Policing Plan / Priorities (as above).
Set Policing Precept budget (as above).
Deliver community safety, victims services
and other partnership outcomes effectively.
Operate an effective Custody Visiting
Scheme.
Provide effective oversight of complaints
against Chief Constable.
Failure to follow legal and other guidance to
ensure transparency of OPCC work.

Failure to meet OPCC
Statutory
Requirements

OPCC Business Plan
Police and Crime Plan /
Annual Report
OPCC commissioning team
Governance Boards,
scheme of governance
Annual Assurance
Statement
Audit Committee / Internal
Audit
Victims service established
by OPCC/OCC
Transparency Checklist

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
OPCC Business and Delivery Plan is developed
with workstreams that detail activity covering all
statutory requirements.
OPCC team appointed owners to statutory duties.
4

3

12
OPCC SLT review delivery of OPCC functions at
SLT meetings.
The GDPR came into force in May 2018. Working
with Joint DPO to ensure on-going compliance.
CoPaCC transparency award received.
6

2

3

◄►

Increased likelihood of
materialisation of risks through
delivery failure (governance,
i) People in post do not have sufficient
scrutiny, commissioning of
knowledge or skills to perform roles to
standards of quality and/or to meet deadlines; services, contribution to
collaboration development,
ii) there is insufficient transfer of knowledge
engagement with public,
that would provide cover/resilience;
iii) there is insufficient capacity in workloads to delivery of statutory duties);
Risk that:

SR7

Risk owner: CEO / OPCC
HR Manager
OPCC Business Plan and
Budget
PDR process and regular
supervisory sessions
SLT Delivery plan meetings

4

4

16

12

OPCC is in the bottom quartile in respect of OPCC
funding across the country.
There has been a period of staff turnover.
Vacancies have been filled and people have
started in posts.

RISK
Risk/ Objective
Capacity/ Capability

Description
iii) there is insufficient capacity in workloads to
perform role to standards of quality and/or to
meet deadlines.

Failure to have
adequate capacity and
capability within OPCC
to effectively fulfil
functions

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Controls and Assurances
Commentary and Review Date
Risk Score
SLT, Delivery plan meetings Probability Impact
and Team meetings (to
share knowledge, resolve
issues)
OPCC HR policies
Resource planning
3
4
MITIGATION OF RISK

Impact
delivery of statutory duties);
Damaged relationship with
public, constabulary and/or
partners.

◄►

Inefficient compared to other
regions/areas
Government
Develop and implement effective regional
strategy to make the region more efficient and scrutiny/intervention
Forced to accept others terms
effective
SR8
Develop and deliver collaboration plans with from future alliances or mergers
Wiltshire and Gloucestershire Constabularies Poor VFM assessment results
Collaboration ‐ other to increase efficiency and effectiveness
forces
Failure to put in place effective governance
and ownership of regional projects and
programmes
Failure to deliver
effective and efficient
regional and other
collaborative outcomes
Failure to:

Failure to:

Inefficient compared to other
regions/areas
Develop and implement effective regional
Government
strategy to make the region more efficient and scrutiny/intervention
effective
Forced to accept others terms
ness
from future alliances or mergers
Failure to put in place effective governance
Poor VFM assessment results
SR9
and ownership of regional projects and
Collaboration ‐ other programmes
C ll b t
ith Fi A th iti

Risk owner: PCC / OPCC
CEO/ OPCC CFO

4

4

OPCC Business Plan
Regional commissioning and
programme boards
Strategic Collaboration
Governance

4

16

ERP decision to not join MFSS which is a police
collaboration, due to rising costs, lack of stable
solution and project delays ERP will continue on
ASC own SAP system. Next 3 years SAP support
now secured.

16

Regional progress being made on Major Crime,
ROCU, Forensics, CT, ESMCP, Special Branch.
Tri Force Firearms work to move to ASC Host
Force model has stopped and this collaboration
will cease in 2019.

4

◄►

Risk owner: PCC / OPCC
CEO/ OPCC CFO
OPCC Business Plan
Regional commissioning and
programme boards
Strategic Collaboration
Governance

4

4

16

joining collaborative internal audit partnetrship in
2019 SWAP.

CJ transformational work with CJ partners has
commenced.
ODA project is reaching the end of its term. A
review of outcomes is underway to report by the
end of April. Data sharing has proved challenging.

9

Fire governance PTF work has completed.
Di l

ith l

l

t

di

RISK
Risk/ Objective
partners
Failure to deliver
effective and efficient
regional and other
collaborative outcomes

Description
Collaborate with Fire Authorities.

MITIGATION OF RISK
Impact

Controls and Assurances

ASSESSMENT
Unmitigated/ Current Risk
Commentary and Review Date
Probability Impact
Risk Score
Dialogue with local partners regarding
commissioned services working together, e.g.
drug & alcohol, victims etc. is ongoing.
3

3

Partner funding remains under pressure with
financial settlements not keeping pace with
inflation and demand. This increases the risk of
demand and funding requests moving to the ASC
and OPCC.

The Joint Audit Findings
for Avon and Somerset Police and Crime
Commissioner and Chief Constable
Year ended 31 March 2019
31 July 2019
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Headlines
This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audits of Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner (‘the PCC’) and Avon and Somerset
Chief Constable (’the Chief Constable’) and the preparation of the PCC and Chief Constable's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 for those charged with
governance.
Financial
Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National
Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are
required to report whether, in our opinion, the entity’s (and where
relevant, the group’s) financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the entity and
the entity’s income and expenditure for the year; and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting
and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.
We are also required to report whether other information published
together with the audited financial statements (including the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), and Narrative Report), is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Value for
Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Money
Code'), we are required to report if, in our opinion, both entities have
arrangements made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM)
conclusion’).
Statutory
duties

Our audit work is now complete and our findings are summarised on pages 4 to 12. Material
changes were made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) and
other main financial statements and associated notes in respect of the McCloud / Sargeant
judgement that has impacted upon the net defined benefit pension liability and associated
revenue costs. Whilst these changes have had a material impact on the CIES they do not have
any impact on the general fund as they are reversed to unusable reserves via the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix C. We have also raised
recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in Appendix A. Our follow up of
recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed in Appendix B.
We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is
consistent with our knowledge of your organisations and the financial statements we have
audited.
Our auditor’s reports will be unmodified.
We have completed our risk based reviews of the PCC’s and Chief Constable’s value for
money arrangements. We have concluded that both the PCC and the Chief Constable have
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Unqualified value for money conclusions will be issued, as detailed in Appendices E and F. Our
findings are summarised on pages 13 to 18.

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties for either entity.
us to:
We have completed our work under the Code but are unable to issue our completion certificate
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and until we complete our work on the Whole of Government Accounts Data Collection Tool.
duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
• To certify the closure of the audits.

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Financial statements

Summary
Overview of the scope of our audit

Audit approach

This Joint Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audits that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the
Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the group’s business and is
risk based, and in particular included:
•

An evaluation of the PCC and Chief Constable’s internal controls environment,
including its IT systems and controls; and

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audits, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

•

Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

We have not had to alter or change our audit plan, as dated 12 March 2019.

Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.
Materiality calculations remain the same as reported in our audit plan.

Materiality for the financial
statements

Amount

Qualitative factors considered

£7.438m

Net Expenditure on Policing Services was determined as the appropriate benchmark for determining materiality. As a result of the
environment in which the PCC and Chief Constable operate, it was considered that the risk of fraud was low. Therefore, 2% was deemed
an appropriate rate to apply to the benchmark. The group materiality was determined using the Chief Constabulary Net Expenditure on
Policing Services.
We calculated materiality for the Group, PCC and Chief Constable separately. Due to the nature of the police group, where the financial
statements are disaggregated from one ledger, we selected the lowest materiality benchmark (that for the Chief Constable) and applied this
to our testing of balances and transactions to ensure appropriate coverage.

Trivial matters

£0.372m

5% of materiality was deemed an appropriate level for triviality.

Materiality for senior officer
remuneration disclosures

£0.025m

A lower level of materiality was determined for the Senior Officer Remuneration balance due to the sensitivity surrounding this disclosure.
This materiality was determined by applying approximately 2% to the total senior officer remuneration.
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Financial Statements

Significant findings – audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Relates to

Commentary

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent
transactions (rebutted)

Group, PCC and
Chief Constable

As we reported in our Joint Audit Plan we rebutted this risk because:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable (rebutted)
presumed risk that revenue may be
misstated due to the improper recognition
of revenue. This presumption can be
rebutted if the auditor concludes that there
is no risk of material misstatement due to
fraud relating to revenue recognition.
Valuation of land and buildings
The PCC (and group) revalue land and
buildings on an annual basis, either via full
valuations or on a desktop basis. In
2018/19, to ensure the carrying value in
the PCC and group financial statements is
not materially different from the current
value or the fair value (for surplus assets)
at the financial statements date, the PCC
has requested a desktop valuation from
the valuation expert. This valuation
represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements
due to the size of the numbers involved
and the sensitivity of this estimate to
changes in key assumptions.
We therefore identified valuation of land
and buildings as a significant risk.

Group and PCC

•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of police bodies, including the PCC, Chief Constable and group, mean that all
forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the PCC, Chief Constable or group.
We:
•

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the PCC’s
land and building valuations are not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls;

•

evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued
to valuation experts and the scope of their work;

•

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;

•

discussed with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that the requirements of the
Code are met;

•

challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with
our understanding; and

•

tested a sample of revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the PCC (and
group’s) asset register.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in respect of the valuation of land and buildings.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for the Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable | 2018/19

5

Financial statements

Significant findings – audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Relates to

Management over-ride of controls

Commentary

Group, PCC
and Chief
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a nonrebuttable presumed risk that the risk Constable
of management over-ride of controls
is present in all entities.

We:
•

evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;

•

analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;

•

tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

We therefore identified management
override of control, in particular
journals, management estimates and
transactions outside the course of
business as a significant risk.

•

gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and considered their
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and

•

evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

Valuation of pension fund net
liability

Group and
Chief
The group's pension fund net liability, Constable
as reflected in its balance sheet as
the net defined benefit liability,
represents a significant estimate in
the financial statements.

We:

The pension fund net liability is
considered a significant estimate due
to the size of the numbers involved
and the sensitivity of the estimate to
changes in key assumptions.
We therefore identified valuation of
the group’s pension fund net liability
as a significant risk.

We identified a control recommendation for management in respect of journals which is included later in this report.
•

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the group’s pension fund
net liability is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls;

•

evaluated the instructions issued by management to their actuary for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

•

assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the group’s pension fund valuation;

•

assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the group to the actuary to estimate the liability;

•

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with
the actuarial report from the actuary, including the updated actuarial reports in respect of the impact of the McCloud /
Sargeant judgement;

•

undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the
consulting actuary (as an auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

•

obtained assurances from the auditor of Somerset Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of
membership data, contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation
in the pension fund financial statements.

As noted later in the report, the draft financial statements were updated to reflect the additional liability on the Police Pension
Schemes for Avon and Somerset in respect of the McCloud / Sargeant ruling, which increased the net pension liability by
£182.8m. This increase was also reflected as an additional charge through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and resulted in adjustments to the Movement in Reserves Statement and the Cash Flow Statement along with the
associated notes to the financial statements. An adjustment for the impact of this ruling on the Local Government Pension
Scheme liability was not made on the grounds of materiality.
See page 9 for more information.
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Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Land and
Buildings £205.9m

Relates to

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Assessment

Group and PCC

Land and buildings comprises £159.6m of specialised assets such as
the Constabulary’s main regional police centres, which are required to
be valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) at year end,
reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset necessary to deliver
the same service provision. The remainder of other land and buildings
(£46.3m) are not specialised in nature and are required to be valued
at existing use in value (EUV) at year end.

•

We reviewed management's processes and
assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
instructions issued to valuation experts and the
scope of their work. We then considered the
competence, expertise and objectivity the valuer in
their capacity as the management experts used.


Green

•

We reviewed and challenged the information used
by the valuer to ensure it was robust and
consistent with our understanding and challenged
key assumptions where appropriate.

•

We have tested revaluations made during the year
to ensure they are input correctly into the asset
register and subsequently recorded in the financial
statements.

The PCC engaged the internal valuer to complete a desktop valuation
of land and buildings as at 31 March 2019 as part of the cyclical
valuation programme. The valuation of land and buildings valued has
resulted in a net increase of £9m. Of this increase, £8m was
transferred to the revaluation reserve whilst £1m was recorded in the
Net Cost of Services and then transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account.
The valuation was undertaken based upon local market indices and
knowledge that were obtained and reviewed by the valuer. Some
assets valued on a modern equivalent asset basis were valued using
an internal floor area different to that of the current asset. The
relevant area was determined in accordance with the PCC’s estates
strategy, and this reflects that some of the current estate does not
represent the requires of the PCC moving forward. This is in line with
the CIPFA Code and the RICs Red Book.

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
 We consider management’s process and key assumptions to be reasonable
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for the Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable | 2018/19

7

Financial statements

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates
Net
pension
liability –
£3.716bn

Relates to

Summary of management’s policy

Audit Comments

Assessment

Group and
Chief
Constable

The Group’s net pension liability at 31
March 2019 is £3.716bn, comprising
the Local Government Pension
Scheme and the Police Pension
Schemes net liability attributable to
Avon and Somerset, after the
financial statements were updated to
reflect the additional liability for Police
Officer Pension Schemes in respect
of the McCloud / Sargeant ruling.

We:


Green

The Group uses Barnett Waddingham
to provide actuarial valuations of the
Group’s assets and liabilities derived
from these schemes, utilising key
assumptions such as life expectancy,
discount rates and salary growth.
Given the significant value of the net
pension fund liability, small changes
in assumptions can result in
significant valuation movements.

•

identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is
not materially misstated and assessed whether these controls were implemented as
expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement. This
included gaining assurances over the data provided to the actuary to ensure it was robust
and consistent with our understanding. No issues were identified from our review of the
controls in place at Avon and Somerset. We are awaiting receipt of a letter of assurance
from the auditor of Somerset Pension Fund in respect of the processes and controls at the
Pension Fund; and

•

evaluated the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your
pension fund valuations and gained an understanding of the basis on which the valuations
were carried out. This included undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the
actuarial assumptions made.

As previously noted, management obtained an updated IAS 19 actuarial valuation in order to
identify the impact of the McCloud / Sargeant ruling on the Police Officer Pension Scheme
which resulted in a £182.8m increase in the net defined benefit pension liability. An update to
the LGPS liability was not made on the grounds of materiality. We are satisfied that the
assumptions and methodology adopted in this updated calculation were appropriate.
More information can be found on page 9.

Assessment
 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
 We consider management’s process and key assumptions to be reasonable
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Financial statements

Significant findings – matters discussed with management
This section provides commentary on the significant matters we discussed with management during the course of the audit.
Significant matter

Relates to

Commentary

Impact of the
McCloud/Sergeant
ruling re age
discrimination on
pension liabilities

Group and
Chief
Constable

The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age discrimination in the judges and firefighters pension schemes
where there were transitional protections given to scheme members. The legal ruling around age also has
implications for other pension schemes where transitional arrangements on changing benefits were implemented,
and this includes both the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the Police Pension Schemes.
The Government applied to the Supreme Court for permission to appeal the decision but this was rejected in June
2019 which confirmed that there was a present obligation to pay additional benefits to scheme members affected,
and that it is probable that there will be an outflow of cash as a result of this ruling.
We have been discussing the implications of this with management and more widely with the sector as a whole to
ensure consistency. Management discussed the implications of the current situation with their actuary and obtained
additional information from them in order to ascertain whether the net defined pension liability could be materially
understated.
Management obtained an updated IAS 19 valuation for their Police Pension Scheme liability and this resulted in an
increase in the gross pension liability in respect of the Police Pension Schemes of approximately £182.8m. A
corresponding increased charge was accounted for through the 2018/19 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, with the impact of this reversed from the General Fund to the Pensions Reserve through the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

We consulted with our
internal actuary who
confirmed that the
calculation approach
adopted by the Group’s
actuary in respect of the
additional McCloud /
Sargeant liability was
appropriate and would
result in a materially
accurate adjustment.
We confirmed that
management had updated
their financial statements to
reflect the updated pension
valuation.

No adjustment was made to the LGPS pension liability in respect of the McCloud / Sargeant ruling as it was
determined that the impact on the financial statements was not material after consideration of an updated calculation
received from the actuary which identified an increase to the pension liability of £2.1m.
Impact of legal
proceedings in
respect of
Guaranteed
Minimum Pensions
on pension
liabilities

Group and
Chief
Constable

The High Court ruled that defined benefit pension schemes must remove any discriminatory effect that Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) entitlements have had on member’s benefits. GMPs must be equalised between men and
women and past underpayments must be corrected. This will lead to increased costs for sponsors of defined benefit
schemes (i.e. the LGPS) that were contracted out of the State Second Pension in the period from 17 May 1990 to 5
April 1997.
We have been discussing the implications of this with management and more widely with the sector as a whole to
ensure consistency. We requested that management discuss the implications of the current situation with their
actuary and we also sought confirmation from the actuary on the approach that they adopted in respect of GMP in
their actuarial valuations.
We note that the actuary has allowed for full indexation in respect of GMP. We discussed this with our internal
actuary who confirmed that given the inherent uncertainty surrounding the calculations, there is a potential for the
pension liability to be overstated by approximately 0.15%. Calculated on the updated gross pension liability, this
equates to £6.1m which is not material.
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Financial statements

Going concern
Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).
Going concern commentary - PCC
Management's assessment process
The PCC has a Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) that runs to
2023/24. The PCC also has a Police and Crime Plan setting out
her policing priorities to 2021.
The CIPFA Code confirms that entities should prepare their
financial statements on a Going Concern basis unless the
services provided are to cease. There is no indication from
Government that the services provided by the PCC or group will
cease.

Management have determined that there is no evidence of an intention to cease the provision of services, and
have therefore adopted the going concern assumption. We have not identified any issues through our review and
enquiries that suggest that this is not appropriate.
We have considered the PCC’s MTFP as part of our work on the Value for Money Conclusion, and have
concluded that the assumptions included within this plan appear to be reasonable.
We are satisfied that the going concern assumption is appropriate for the PCC and group financial statements
and is in line with accounting standards and the CIPFA Code.

Going concern commentary – Chief Constable
Management's assessment process
The Chief Constable’s funding is fully derived from allocations
made by the Police and Crime Commissioner. The MTFP which
runs to 2022/23 includes funding allocations to the Chief
Constable in each year.
There are no indications that the services provided by the Chief
Constable will cease, and therefore the Going Concern
assumption is appropriate.

Management have determined that there is no evidence of an intention to cease the provision of services, and
have therefore adopted the going concern assumption. We have not identified any issues through our review and
enquiries that suggest that this is not appropriate.
Our comments above in respect of the MTFP equally apply to the Chief Constable.
We are satisfied that the going concern assumption is appropriate for the Chief Constable’s financial statements
and is in line with accounting standards and the CIPFA Code.

Management have provided us with their considerations of the Going Concern assumption as communicated above and in relevant documentation such as the latest Medium Term
Financial Plan. As such, we have obtained sufficient, appropriate audit evidence that the going concern assumption is appropriate for both entities.
No separate documented going concern considerations were produced for either the PCC or Chief Constable, and best practice would suggest that these should be produced
annually in the future.
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Financial Statements

Other communication requirements
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance for both Avon
and Somerset PCC and Chief Constable.
Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Joint Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and
no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to related
parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any
incidences from our audit work.

Written representations

Standard letters of representation have been requested from the both the PCC (including specific representations in respect of the Group) and
Chief Constable which are included in the Joint Audit Committee papers.

Confirmation requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to third parties including the PCC’s bankers and the treasury
managers. These were returned with positive confirmation and no issues were noted.

Disclosures

Our review found disclosure amendments that are detailed in Appendix C.
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Financial statements

Other responsibilities under the Code
Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including the
Annual Governance Statements and Narrative Reports), are materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
No inconsistencies have been identified and we plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect.

Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:
•

If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading or
inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit

•

If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

We have nothing to report on these matters for either the PCC or the Chief Constable.
Specified procedures for Whole
of Government Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack
under WGA group audit instructions. We have not yet completed this work, and will do so in line with the national timetable.

Certification of the closure of
the audit

We cannot certify the closure of the audit until our work on the WGA consolidation pack is completed.
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Value for Money

Value for Money
Background to our VFM approach

Risk assessment

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the PCC and Chief Constable have made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
This is known as the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion.

We carried out an initial risk assessment and identified a significant risk in respect of
specific areas of proper arrangements related to medium term finances using the
guidance contained in AGN03. We communicated this risk to you in our Joint Audit
Plan dated 12 March 2019.

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements
are in place at the PCC and Chief Constable. In carrying out this work, we are required to
follow the NAO's Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2017. AGN 03
identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our
report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform
further work.
We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risk we identified from our
initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant risk
determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.

Informed
decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment
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Value for Money

Value for Money
Our work

Overall conclusion

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Police
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable's arrangements for delivering economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that
the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable each had proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.

We have focused our work on the significant risk that we identified from our planning and
on-going risk assessment. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:
•

Both the PCC and Chief Constable delivered a revenue budget surplus in 2018/19
which was used to fund known commitments and allowed a transfer to reserves;

•

Quarterly monitoring reports taken to the Police and Crime Board provide sufficient
detail to allow the PCC to effectively scrutinise budgets, and take remedial action
should this be required;

•

The MTFP identifies a cumulative £6.1m revenue budget deficit by the end of 2023/24
and budgets are balanced in 2019/20 and 2020/21 following planned savings delivery
of £5.1m. The latest police funding settlement has given the PCC the ability to fund
commitments for increased officer numbers amongst other priority areas;

•

The assumptions employed in the MTFP appear reasonable and in some cases are
more prudent than Avon and Somerset’s neighbouring Forces;

•

The 5 year Capital Plan to 2023/24 identifies a balanced position to 2022/23, though
the Plan is being revisited following the delivery of a significant capital underspend in
2018/19;

•

Savings are identified in the MTFP and the Constabulary has sufficient time to properly
consider and fully develop their savings plans to ensure that they can deliver the
financial benefit required whilst having proper regard to the impact on service delivery;
and

•

The Constabulary’s recruitment plans are funded through the base budget and intakes
of apprentices have already begun in 2019/20.

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we
performed, and the conclusions we drew from this work on pages 15 to 18.
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Value for Money
Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risk we identified through our initial risk assessment and ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk

Findings

Medium Term Financial
Planning

2018/19 outturn

In considering this risk we:

The 2018/19 revenue outturn position was an underspend of £11.4m; this was prior to agreeing carry forwards, provisions and reserve movements.

•

This year end surplus was primarily as a result of the Constabulary running under establishment for much of the year; recruitment plans are in place
which should close these gaps in 2019/20 and these are considered later in our report. There were underspends in the following pay budgets:

•

•

•

reviewed the outturn
revenue position;
considered the
arrangements for monitoring
and managing the delivery
of the budget and savings
plans for 2018/19;
reviewed the arrangements
for developing and agreeing
the 2019/20 budgets and
updated Medium Term
Financial Plan, including the
identification of savings
plans, and considered the
level of risk within these
plans; and
reviewed the Constabulary’s
plans for recruitment to
ensure that these are
aligned to the future
financial plans.

•
•
•

Police Officers - £5.1m
Staff - £4.6m
PCSO’s - £1m

In bringing the revenue budget to a break-even position for the year the following decisions were made:
• £3.3m to be set aside in relation to possible liabilities for insurance, legal claims, redundancy and outstanding contractual liabilities.
• £1.3m of carry forward requests
• £6.9m to be transferred to earmarked reserves
The transfers to reserves comprised £2.5m to support the 2019/20 Change Programme and £4.4m ring‐fenced to support future capital financing. This
will assist the change programme to deliver the expected benefits and can be used to pump prime future transformation projects, and also provide
additional support for future capital developments to ensure that this remains fit for purpose.
The capital outturn was £11.7m, representing 47.6% of the plan. The underspend on projects that have already begun has been carried forward into
2018/19 (£4m), with the remaining underspend of £8.8m released at the end of the year. These represent a mixture of projects that will be re-phased
into the 2019-20 capital plan, such as building works in line with the PCC’s Estates Strategy, and funding released for national projects that was not
used in year, such as the Emergency Services Network. The Constabulary recognise that capital plans included some optimism bias, and are working
to ensure that future capital plans represent a more realistic profile of capital spend. An updated capital plan is to be completed in time for the 2019/20
quarter one budget reporting. The re-profiled capital spend does not directly impact upon the Constabulary’s savings plans as estates savings are only
recognised in budgets once they are achieved. The Constabulary will need to ensure that updated capital plan reflects a more realistic profiling of
spend and also reconciles to the increased funding that has been made available through the life of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which is
considered over the page.

Budget monitoring
Throughout the year revenue monitoring reports are taken to the Police and Crime Board on a quarterly basis to allow the PCC to scrutinise budget
performance. The reports set out performance against budget in sufficient detail and provide information on significant variances to allow the reader to
understand the reasons for them. An example of how this was used to pro-actively manage the revenue budget is the adjustment of the Corporate
Information management budget to release savings in Q1 of the financial year.
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Value for Money
Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risk we identified through our initial risk assessment and ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk

Findings

Medium Term Financial
Planning

Medium Term Financial Planning

In considering this risk we:

The latest Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) covers the period from 2019/20 to 2023/24. This was produced following the final Police Finance
Settlement announcement in early January 2019 and therefore reflects the increased precept for 2019/20 that was agreed by the Police and Crime
Panel following the PCC’s recommendation. The MTFP identifies balanced budgets in 2019/20 and 2020/21 following planned savings of £5.1m. A
cumulative £6.1m revenue budget deficit is forecast by 31 March 2024 which is a significant improvement position forecast in previous years.

•
•

•

•

reviewed the outturn
revenue position;
considered the
arrangements for monitoring
and managing the delivery
of the budget and savings
plans for 2018/19;
reviewed the arrangements
for developing and agreeing
the 2019/20 budgets and
updated Medium Term
Financial Plan, including the
identification of savings
plans, and considered the
level of risk within these
plans; and
reviewed the Constabulary’s
plans for recruitment to
ensure that these are
aligned to the future
financial plans.

The funding settlement, first announced in provisional form in December 2018, was better than many in the Police sector had anticipated. In particular,
it addressed the immediate pressures to revenue budgets faced as a result to changes in employer pension contributions and granted PCC’s greater
flexibility for more funds to be raised locally via precept. The better than anticipated settlement has allowed the Constabulary to commit to increasing
officer numbers and the PCC has also committed to investments in priority areas of knife crime, burglary and drugs.
The longer term funding picture remains unclear. The Comprehensive Spending Review expected later in 2019 now looks likely to be either delayed,
and if not it may only provide certainty over the immediate short term funding position. This continues the uncertainty for all public service providers,
including the police. There is further uncertainty for police bodies from the potential reform of the police funding formula which means that planning for
the medium-term and long term remains challenging. Despite this, the MTFP has been produced using assumptions that appear reasonable based
upon the information available at it’s time of production. Assumptions employed in respect of funding appear to be prudent, with forecasts of
main grant funding remaining at the same level throughout the life of the MTFP, which mirrors the most prudent assumption applied by most other
police bodies in the South West and also in line with the recommendations of the National Police Chief’s Council Finance Committee for the 2019/20
financial year. The MTFP assumes that the funding received to cover the increased pensions costs in 2018/19 will not be recurrent. This is a more
conservative approach than some other Forces who have assumed that it will remain throughout their MTFP’s. Avon and Somerset received £2.8m of
pensions funding in 2018/19 and therefore if this were to continue to be paid in future years there would be a significant benefit to the MTFP as this
would offset the pensions costs which are included in the base budget.
The biggest area of expenditure for the Constabulary remains its employees, and it has assumed annual pay increases of 2% over the life of the
MTFP. Any pay increases in excess of this amount would have a significant effect on the budget and this is therefore one of the most significant
assumptions in the MTFP. This assumption is in line with the other Forces in the South West which provides assurance that Avon and Somerset are
not an outlier. Other inflationary increases applied to expenditure are in line with our expectations and available supporting evidence and cost
forecasts.
The base budget in 2018/19 included £1.5m of revenue funding for capital, and the MTFP assumes that by 2023/24 the recurring base budget will
include £5m of such funding. In 2019/20, the increased precept has allowed an additional one-off contribution of £4m. This evidences prudent medium
term financial planning, with capital funding for the sector having seen significant reductions over recent years. Prior to the funding settlements over
the last 2 years, many PCC’s were considering removing revenue funding for capital altogether, and Avon and Somerset took a 2-year holiday from
revenue funding for capital in 2016/17 and 2017/18. The additional revenue funding included in the MTFP will allow Avon and Somerset to continue to
invest in capital and technology to maintain the efficiencies through it’s estate and equipment, and ensure that officers and staff are properly.
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Value for Money
Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risk we identified through our initial risk assessment and ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk

Findings

Medium Term Financial
Planning

Revenue savings

In considering this risk we:

With all things being equal, delivery of the savings included within the MTFP would balance revenue budgets to the end of 2020/21. Savings targets
have been reduced given the favourable finance settlement, and this has allowed more time for the Constabulary and PCC to consider and fully
develop savings plans that ensure that they can deliver the financial benefit required whilst having proper regard to the quality of the service provided
and the objectives in the police and crime plan.

•
•

•

•

reviewed the outturn
revenue position;
considered the
arrangements for monitoring
and managing the delivery
of the budget and savings
plans for 2018/19;
reviewed the arrangements
for developing and agreeing
the 2019/20 budgets and
updated Medium Term
Financial Plan, including the
identification of savings
plans, and considered the
level of risk within these
plans; and
reviewed the Constabulary’s
plans for recruitment to
ensure that these are
aligned to the future
financial plans.

The savings requirement in the current iteration of the MTFP appears to be less challenging when compared to the savings required in previous
versions. £6.1m of savings are needed over the life of the current MTFP and savings identified to date include £1.4m of savings released from
recurrent underspends identified during the 2019/20 budget process. Other savings targets to be realised from existing plans such as the continuation
of the enabling services reviews and target savings of £0.5m for 2020/21 reflecting reductions in the use of the National Police Air Service.

Reserves
Useable reserves were forecast to be £31m at 31 March 2019 at the time of drafting of the MTFP, a reduction of £5m (13.9%) from the levels one year
earlier. The draft financial statements show useable reserves of £38.7m at 31 March 2019, with the higher than budgeted position largely due to the
2018/19 revenue underspend. Useable reserves are forecast to reduce over the medium term to £18.7m by 31March 2024 as shown in the graph
below. The increase in 2021 reflects the timing of anticipated capital receipts prior to their use as part of the funding of the Capital Plan. A General
Fund balance of £10m is expected to be maintained throughout, reflecting 3.5% of the 2018/19 budget.
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Value for Money
Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risk we identified through our initial risk assessment and ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk

Findings

Medium Term Financial
Planning

Capital plan

The 5 year Capital Plan to 2023/24 identifies a balanced position to 2022/23, with a deficit of £11.8m in 2023/24. As with the revenue budget, the level
of assumptions that have to be made in later years of the plan make it difficult to accurately reflect costs and funding in the later years of the plan. The
reviewed the outturn
Plan is a mixture of capital replacement programmes and capital projects, with total expenditure of £70.1m identified to 2023/24 against funding of
revenue position;
£58.3m for the same period. However, as noted in the 2018/19 outturn report ,an updated Capital Plan is being developed and will be presented with
considered the
the Q1 2019/20 revenue monitoring. This reflects the requirement for updates following the capital outturn for 2018/19 which resulted in a significant
arrangements for monitoring underspend in the capital budget.
and managing the delivery
of the budget and savings
Recruitment plans
plans for 2018/19;
reviewed the arrangements Officer numbers are now close to establishment after a period of being lower than budgeted. The Constabulary’s intake of 30 recruits in May 2019 will
for developing and agreeing be the first to go through the apprenticeship programme that is being delivered by the University of the West of England. The ambition is to increase
the 2019/20 budgets and
the apprentice numbers to a level that will allow the full draw down of funding from the Apprenticeship Levy contributions. This is included within the
updated Medium Term
MTFP as the Constabulary have been paying in to the Levy since it was introduced in the UK. The Constabulary are also taking on 10 recruits from
Financial Plan, including the the Police Now initiative along with a further 10 detectives from their National Detective Programme which is part of the overall plan for officer
identification of savings
recruitment and establishment.
plans, and considered the
level of risk within these
Given the repatriation of services from SouthWest One to the Constabulary and the subsequent restructures there has been high turnover in staff
plans; and
posts which has meant that staff numbers are now more of a focus than they been previously. Staff numbers were also below establishment during
reviewed the Constabulary’s the 2018/19 financial year, and the Constabulary are now looking at e-recruitment solutions to streamline recruitment processes to allow staff to be
plans for recruitment to
recruited faster.
ensure that these are
aligned to the future
Costings for establishment are built into the MTFP and were considered as part of the budget build. As part of the increased precept for 2019/20, the
financial plans.
PCC has set a target to grow officer numbers by 100 within the year with the costs included within the base budget. The challenge going forward will
be to ensure that the new recruits are of a sufficient quality given that all other local Forces are also recruiting.

In considering this risk we:
•
•

•

•

Taking the above information into account, we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the PCC and Chief Constable each has
proper arrangements for informed decision making and sustainable resource deployment.
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Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.
Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D.
Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the PCC and Chief Constable. No non-audit services were identified
which were charged from the beginning of the financial year to July 2019.
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Appendix A

Action plan
We have identified a recommendation for the group as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendation with management and we will
report on progress on this recommendation during the course of the 2019/20 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course
of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment


Medium

Issue and risk

Recommendations

We reported in previous years that it was possible to amend the description of
journal entries after they had been posted to the ledger. Management concluded
that as it was proposed that the SAP system would be replaced in 2018/19, no
further action would be taken. Given that SAP will now continue to be used for
future periods, this decision should be reviewed.

Management should review the system and identify if it is possible to
remove the ability to change journal descriptions on the general
ledger once they have been posted.

There is a risk that descriptions for journal entries could be amended and that this
could result in fraud or error in the financial statements.

Management response
We will investigate with the SAP technical team to see if it is possible
to protect journal descriptions from being changed.

Controls
 High – Significant effect on control system
 Medium – Effect on control system
 Low – Best practice
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Appendix B

Follow up of prior year recommendations
We identified the following issues in the audit of Avon and Somerset PCC and Chief Constable’s 2017/18 financial statements, which resulted in recommendations being reported in our
2017/18 Audit Findings report.

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

X

Our review identified that 1,414 individual asset entries remained on the year end asset
Our review of the fixed asset register in 2017/18 identified
approximately 1,500 assets that were held at nil value. There is a risk register with a nil net book value.
that these assets are no longer in use, and should have been
removed from the asset register, or that they are still in use and the
useful economic lives used to depreciate these assets are too short.
We recommended that management should review all nil value assets
to confirm whether they are still in use. Assets no longer in use should
be written out of the fixed asset register. Assets which are still in use
should be reviewed to determine if the useful economic lives used for
depreciation are appropriate.

X

Upon completion of our audit, we reported a mismatch between the
total comprehensive income and expenditure in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the movement in reserves
per the Balance Sheet. We identified that this mismatch related to
the way that certain holding accounts relating to collaborations were
reflected in the financial statement.

In the current year a mismatch again arises between the Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure and the movement of reserves in the Balance Sheet, with the difference of £
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Although trivial at £307k, we would recommend that management review the accounting
treatment applied to ensure that it is in line with the CIPFA Code and Internal Financial
Reporting Standards.

We would not normally expect a difference to arise and
recommended that management review the accounting treatment in
order to confirm that this was appropriate.

Assessment
 Action completed
X Not yet addressed
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Appendix C

Audit Adjustments - PCC
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2019.
Detail
After submission of the draft financial statements, management identified an adjustment
that was required to their IAS 19 pension figures. This increased the charge to the Net
Cost of Police Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account by
£723k with a corresponding adjustment to the Re-measurement of pension assets and
liabilities in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. The issue arose due to an
incorrect number being entered on the original journal.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr ‘Police Services - OCC’ £723k

No impact

Cr ‘Re-measurement of pension assets
and liabilities’ £723k

There is no impact on the Balance Sheet.
As noted within our main report, the liability in respect of the Police Officer Pension
Schemes was updated to include the impact of the McCloud / Sargeant judgement. This
resulted in an increase of approximately £182.8m to the pension liability which was
calculated by the Group’s actuary. There was a corresponding increase in the charges
reflected through the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Dr ‘Police Services - OCC’ £182,760k

Cr ‘Pension Liability’ £182,760k
Cr ‘Total unusable reserves’ £182,760k

The charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement were reversed to
the Pension Reserve through the Movement in Reserves Statement. A number of notes
to the financial statements were also updated to reflect the updated transactions and
balances.

Unadjusted misstatements
The table below provides details of misstatements identified during the audit which have not been made in the final set of financial statements.
Detail

Reason for not adjusting

The impact of the McCloud / Sargeant ruling was not reflected in the financial statements in respect of the LGPS liability. The actuary calculated that
the increase to the LGPS liability would be £2,057k. Management did not update the financial statements as this was not material.

Immaterial to the financial
statements.

Our internal actuary considered the assumptions and methodologies applied by management’s expert, Barnett Waddingham, and suggested that the
indexation applied in respect of GMP could potential result in the liability being overstated by approximately 0.15%. Applied to the updated pension
liability (post McCloud), this suggests a potential overstatement of the pension liability of approximately £6,110k.

Immaterial to the financial
statements and relates to
estimation uncertainty.
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Appendix C

Audit Adjustments - PCC
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.
Detail
The original disclosure in Note 17 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ included £1.414m of costs written out of Assets Under Construction relating to capital expenditure
that would no longer result in service potential. The PPE note included this write out as a disposal, however these costs are not included in any of the disposal
calculations elsewhere in the financial statements as they have been accounted for as an impairment. It was agreed that these costs would be reflected on a separate
line in the PPE Note in order to differentiate them from disposals of assets.

Adjusted?



It was also noted that due to this adjustment, the ‘Capital additions’ line in Note 26 ‘Capital Financing’ did not match the capital additions reflected elsewhere in the
financial statements. This is because the additions line in Note 26 reflects the net position of expenditure, following the write out described above.
The PCC’s £3,000k investment in the CCLA Property Fund was originally disclosed as being held at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
(FVOCI). Following our review of the terms of the Fund and the relevant accounting standards, we concluded that the investment did not fulfil the requirements to allow
designation as FVOCI. As a result, the investment was reclassified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss. This did not have an impact on the main financial statements.



The Group Expenditure and Funding Analysis Note was updated as the total of the ‘Financial and investment income and expenditure’ sub-total line was disclosed as
£0 when this should have read as £90,588k.

An audit fee note was not included in the draft financial statements. A disclosure note setting out the audit fees for 2017/18 and 2018/19 was included in the final
version of the financial statements.





The 2018/19 CIPFA Code introduced new disclosure requirements for the breakdown of debtors and creditors in the notes to the financial statements. The draft
financial statements were produced using the old disclosure requirements and therefore the notes were updated in line with the new financial reporting requirements.



A number of presentational, grammatical and numerical adjustments were made to the financial statements to improve readability and disclosures and ensuring that
they are in line with the current International Financial Reporting Standards.



The ‘Reserves used to finance capital’ line in Note 7 of the Group financial statements was updated as the ‘Total Unusable Reserves’ column did not reflect the total
adjustments included in the other columns of this line item (£4,349k).
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Audit Adjustments – Chief Constable
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Detail
After submission of the draft financial statements, management identified an adjustment
that was required to their IAS 19 pension figures. This increased the charge to the Net
Cost of Police Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account by
£723k. The issue arose due to an incorrect number being entered on the original journal.
There is no impact on the Balance Sheet as this was matched by corresponding changes
to the Re-measurement of pension assets and liabilities and the respective intragroup
funding.
As noted within our main report, the liability in respect of the Police Officer Pension
Schemes was updated to include the impact of the McCloud / Sargeant judgement. This
resulted in an increase of approximately £182.8m to the pension liability which was
calculated by the Group’s actuary. There was a corresponding increase in the charges
reflected through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr ‘Police Services’ £723k

No impact

Cr ‘Intragroup adjustment’ £723k
Dr ‘Intragroup adjustment (Remeasurement of pension assets and
liabilities)’ £723k
Cr ‘Re-measurement of pension assets and
liabilities’ £723k
Cr ‘Intragroup adjustment’ £182,760k
Dr ‘Police services’ £182,760k

Cr ‘Police Pension Liabilities’
£182,760k
Dr ‘Long term intragroup debtor’
£182,760k

The charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement were matched by
a corresponding increase in the intra-group funding received from the PCC. A number of
notes to the financial statements were also updated to reflect the updated transactions
and balances.

Unadjusted misstatements
The table below provides details of misstatements identified during the audit which have not been made in the final set of financial statements.
Detail

Reason for not adjusting

The impact of the McCloud / Sargeant ruling was not reflected in the financial statements in respect of the LGPS liability. The actuary calculated that
the increase to the LGPS liability would be £2,057k. Management did not update the financial statements as this was not material.

Immaterial to the financial
statements.

Our internal actuary considered the assumptions and methodologies applied by management’s expert, Barnett Waddingham, and suggested that the
indexation applied in respect of GMP could potential result in the liability being overstated by approximately 0.15%. Applied to the updated pension
liability (post McCloud), this suggests a potential overstatement of the pension liability of approximately £6,110k.

Immaterial to the financial
statements and relates to
estimation uncertainty.
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Audit Adjustments – Chief Constable
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.
Detail

Adjusted?

The Chief Constable’s Expenditure and Funding Analysis disclosure (Note 7) originally showed a -£10,340k intragroup adjustment to the Net Cost of Police Services.
This should have been a positive figure rather than negative, and as a result the Net Cost of Police Services did not reflect a nil position. The signage was updated
along with the remainder of the note sub-totals and totals that were impacted by this change.



An audit fee note was not included in the draft financial statements. A disclosure note setting out the audit fees for 2017/18 and 2018/19 was included in the final
version of the financial statements.




A number of presentational, grammatical and numerical adjustments were made to the financial statements to improve readability and disclosures and ensuring that
they are in line with the current International Financial Reporting Standards.
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Fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Audit Fees
Proposed fee

Final fee

PCC Audit

£27,992

TBC

Chief Constable Audit

£14,438

TBC

Total audit fees (excluding VAT)

£42,430

TBC
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Audit opinion
We anticipate we will provide the PCC with an unmodified audit report
Independent auditor’s report to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Avon and Somerset (the
‘Police and Crime Commissioner’) and its subsidiary the Chief Constable (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the PCC
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the PCC
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance
Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the Notes to the Financial Statements, including the Statement of
Accounting Policies, and include the Avon and Somerset police pension fund financial statements comprising the
Police Officers Pension Fund Account and the Pension Fund Net Assets. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
In our opinion, the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Police and Crime Commissioner as
at 31 March 2019 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
expenditure and income for the year then ended;
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the group and the Police
and Crime Commissioner in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
• the Chief Financial Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
• the Chief Financial Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the Police and Crime Commissioner’s ability to continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement,
other than the Police and Crime Commissioner and group financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge of the group and the Police and Crime Commissioner obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’
published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks
and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Police and Crime Commissioner gained through our work in relation to the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other
information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report
and the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we make a written recommendation to the Police and Crime Commissioner under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section
28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for the Avon and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable | 2018/19

27

Appendix E

Audit opinion
•
•

we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course
of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014,
in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.
Responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Financial Officer for the financial
statements
As explained more fully in the Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Police and Crime
Commissioner is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. That officer is the Chief
Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts,
which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for assessing the group’s and the
Police and Crime Commissioner’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that
the services provided by the group or the Police and Crime Commissioner will no longer be provided.
The Police and Crime Commissioner is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31

March 2019.
Responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner
The Police and Crime Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and
to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the
Police and Crime Commissioner has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects
of the Police and Crime Commissioner's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources are operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on
the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in all
significant respects the Police and Crime Commissioner had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under
the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended
31 March 2019.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner has put
in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work
necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component Assurance statement for the Avon
and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for the year ended 31 March 2019. We are
satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements or on our conclusion on the
Police and Crime Commissioner's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Police and Crime Commissioner, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Police and Crime Commissioner those matters we are required to state
to the Police and Crime Commissioner in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Police and Crime
Commissioner as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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We anticipate we will provide the Chief Constable with an unmodified audit report
Independent auditor’s report to the Chief Constable for Avon and Somerset
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the Chief Constable for Avon and Somerset (the ‘Chief Constable’)
for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the Notes to the Financial
Statements, including the Statement of Accounting Policies and include the police pension fund financial
statements of Avon and Somerset comprising the Police Officer Pension Fund Account and the Pension Fund
Net Assets. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
In our opinion, the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable as at 31 March 2019 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended;
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Chief Constable in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
• the Chief Financial Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
• the Chief Financial Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Chief Constable’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
Other information
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge of the Chief Constable obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’
published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks
and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Chief Constable gained through our work in relation to the Chief Constable’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together
with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we make a written recommendation to the Chief Constable under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section
28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course
of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014,
in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.
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Responsibilities of the Chief Constable and the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Chief Constable is required to
make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has
the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. That officer is the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for assessing the Chief
Constable’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided
by the Chief Constable will no longer be provided.
The Chief Constable is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Chief Constable’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Chief Constable put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the
Chief Constable has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Chief Constable's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on
the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in all
significant respects the Chief Constable had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The
Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of
Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Chief Constable put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Chief Constable has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work
necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component Assurance statement for the Avon
and Somerset Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for the year ended 31 March 2019. We are
satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements or on our conclusion on the
Chief Constable's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the
year ended 31 March 2019.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Chief Constable, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Chief Constable those matters we are required to state to the Chief Constable in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Chief Constable as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Responsibilities of the Chief Constable
The Chief Constable is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Chief Constable’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
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